Pocono Township BOC Agenda April 7, 2025

I~ocone-onnship

ININEAY @AY N

POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
April 7, 2025 | 6:00 p.m.
112 Township Drive, Tannersville, PA

Open Meeting

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Public Comment

Limited to 5 minutes per person, please state your name and if you are a Pocono Township resident.

Announcements

An Executive session was held on 4/2/25 to discuss personnel.

Prior to this meeting there was a LERTA workshop held.

Due to the PSATS Convention, the May 5% Board meeting will be rescheduled to Tuesday, May 13"
in order to ensure a quorum.

Presentations

Hearings

Resolutions

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-06 Granting Conditional Approval of the Route 611 Land
Development, LLC Minor Subdivision Plan. (Action Item)

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-08 Granting Conditional Approval of the Amended Swiftwater
Solar LDP Phase A. (Action Item)

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-09 Granting Conditional Approval of the Mendez Lot
Consolidation Plan (Action Item)

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-10 Granting Conditional Approval of the Amended Swiftwater
Solar LDP Phase D. (Action Item)

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-11 Granting Conditional Approval of the DeFazio Lot Joinder
Plan (Action Item)

Consent Agenda

Motion to approve a consent agenda of the following items:

o Old business consisting of the minutes of the March 12t and March 25, 2025 regular
meetings of the Board of Commissioners. (Action Items)



Pocono Township BOC Agenda April 7, 2025

o Ratification of the financial transactions through March 26, 2025 as presented, including
expenditures in the amount of $821,824.42 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer
Operations, Gross Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund, Transfers. (Action Item)

o Financial transactions through April 2, 2025 as presented, including ratification of
expenditures in the amount of $426,899.98 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer
Operations, Gross Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund, Transfers. (Action Items)

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel — None

Report of the President

Richard Wielebinski

Motion to authorize The Ammerman Group (COSTARS Vendor) to paint the Admin & County section
of the NCC administrative building in the amount of $25,000 (Possible Action Item).

Motion to utilize O'Brien's moving and storage for the purposes of moving the township assets within
the Administration building to the new complex in the amount of $7,823.94 (Possible Action Item).
Motion to award the Clean-up bid to Marki Rolloff Container, Inc. in the amount of $27.70 per Cubic
Yard for the 2025 Spring, April 25" and 26th and Fall, September 26" and 27" Township Clean-up.
(Possible Action Item).

Motion to approve the reduction of the construction escrow for the Spirit of Swiftwater Phase 2 (LDP
1287) in the amount of $245,051.37 based on T&M'’s letter dated March 11, 2025. (Possible Action
Item).

Motion to utilize Breathe-EZ to clean 4 air exchangers in the Admin. wing of the new building, for a
cost of $22,500 (Possible Action Item).

Motion to appoint Brian Winot as BOC MS4 designate to work with T&M for updated MS4 Permit
Approval. (Possible Action Item)

Motion to Ratify the following policies for Pocono Township Police Department as approved by the
Civil Service Commission & Labor Council: Law Enforcement Authority, 101 Chief Executive
Authority, Oath of Office, Police manual, Use of Force, Vehicle Pursuit, Search and Seizure, Body
Worn Cameras, Unmanned Aerial System, Temporary custody of Adults, Performance Evaluations.
(Possible Action Item)

Motion to approve the Traffic Signal Easement Agreement between the Pokorny Family PA. LLC, and
Pocono Township at the SW corner of Bartonsville Ave. and Route 611 Intersection. (Possible
Action Item)

Commissioner Comments

Natasha Leap — Vice President

Ellen Gnandt — Commissioner

Update — SBA Cell Tower

Update — Solar Field

Update — Kennel

Motion to approve the purchase of a 2025 Ford Police Interceptor from Koch 33 & Upfitting by P&D
(Costars Vendor) in the amount of $102,595.15 (Possible Action Item).

Brian Winot — Commissioner

Mike Velardi — Commissioner



Pocono Township BOC Agenda April 7, 2025

Reports

Zoning — SFM Consulting - Report Attached

= Motion to authorize SFM Consulting to conduct inspections at 2914 Bartonsville Ave. (Possible
Action Item).

= Motion to authorize SFM Consulting to conduct inspections at 268 Laurel Lake Road for potentially
dangerous structures within the township (Possible Action Item).

Police — Chief James Wagner (First Meeting of Month)
Township Manager’s Report — Jerrod Belvin

» Update Green Light Go

= NCC Update

= Motion to approve Kistler O'Brian Fire protection for Annual Fire Inspection for the new 205 Old Mill
Rd Campus (Simplex Fire System, Exit Lights, Emergency Lighting, Fire Extinguishers) in the amount
of $3,840.02 (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to accept service agreement from Johnson Controls, for Lighting & HVAC at 205 Old Mill
Road Administrative Building (Possible Action Item)

= Defensive Driving

»= Insurance Update

= County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

Public Works/Sewer Report — Patrick Briegel

= Sewer Business Update

=  MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions

=  Current Public Works Projects

»= Motion to authorize advertisement for 2025 Materials Bids. (Possible Action Item)
= Parks Update

Township Events Report — Jennifer Gambino (First Meeting of Month)

Egg Hunt

Fishing Derby

Clean-up Day

Motion to waive Mountain View Park Pavillion fees for Old Forge Elementary PTO for May 20"
(Possible Action Item)

= Motion to waive Mountain View Park Pavillion fees for Clear Run Elementary School for May 30"
(Possible Action Item)

Township Engineer Report — T&M Associates

= Sewer Business Update

= Learn Road safety enhancement project and roundabout survey work.

= TASA Project

= TLC walking bridge.

= Address Request — Parcel 12.12.1.22-5 — Center line, Moss Drive, and a possible new road name.
(Possible Action Item)

Township Solicitor Report — Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P.

= Sewer Business Update

= General legal update

= Update — Archer Lane

= Learn Road Easement Process



Pocono Township BOC Agenda April 7, 2025

= TASA Sidewalk Update — Easements
= Motion to repeal the existing LERTA Ordinance (Possible Action Item)

Public Comment

Adjournment




TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-06

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE 611 LAND
DEVELOPMENT, LLC MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN

WHEREAS, the applicant, 611 Land Development, LLC, submitted a minor subdivision
plan application titled “Final Minor Subdivision for 611 Land Development, LLC” (the
“Plan”). The Plan proposes a minor subdivision of property located on the northern side of SR
0611 between Bartonsville Avenue and Frantz Road into two (2) parcels. The existing parcels

are identified as Monroe County Tax Parcel No. 12.2.1.26-2. The property is located in the C
Commercial Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters
dated May 7, 2024, December 5, 2024 and March 6, 2025 ; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission recommended the conditional plan
approval of the Plan at a meeting held on March 10, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desire to grant the conditional
approval of the Plan, subject to the following.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of
Pocono Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the following requests for modification from the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance are hereby granted:

1. SALDO Sections 390-43.A.(10) and 390-47.C.(2) — Lot lines should follow municipal
and county boundaries. The applicant shall be permitted to have Lot #2 cross the existing
municipal boundary line shared between Hamilton Township and Pocono Township.

That the “Final Minor Subdivision for 611 Land Development, LLC” as shown on the plan
prepared by prepared by Devco Infra LLC, dated March 7, 2024, as revised, be hereby approved
with the following conditions and provided the plan is revised as follows, subject to the
review and approval of the Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated May 7, 2024, December 5, 2024 and March 6, 2025.

2. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including but not limited to

any outstanding plan account charges and all professional services fees, prior to the recording
of the Plan.

3. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental agencies



prior to presenting the Plan for signatures.

4. The applicant shall provide three (3) mylars for recording the plans and eight (8) sets of paper
prints which are signed and notarized by the owner and sealed by the engineer.

5. The applicant shall meet all conditions of the final plan approval, and Plan shall be recorded
within twelve (12) months of Conditional final plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional final plan approval will be considered void.

6. The applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners’ Resolution, otherwise the application is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the
Township of Pocono the day of ; 2025

ATTEST: Township of Pocono
Board of Commissioners

By: By:

Print Name: Jerrod Belvin Print Name: Richard Wielebinski
Title: Township Manager Title: President




\
NN
4. '\.  YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

March 6, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: 611 LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC - DUAL BRAND HOTEL

FINAL MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN & LOT 2 PRELIMINARY LAND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW NO. 3

POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1401, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0630

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our third review of the Final Minor Subdivision
Plan and Lot 2 Preliminary Land Development Plan Application for the 611 Land Development LLC —
Dual Brand Hotel by Marriot. The submitted information consists of the following items.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018

Response letters to Pocono Township prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated January 24, 2025 and
February 28, 2025.

Response letter to Hamilton Township prepared by Decvo Infra, LLC, dated January 15, 2025.

BCRA Easement, Part of Tax Parcel No. 12/2/1/26-2, dated August 5, 2015, Deed Book 2458, Page
5990.

Sanitary Sewer Easement, Tax Parcel No. 12/2/1/26-2, Deed Book 2136, Page 4754.

BCRA Easement, Part of Tax Parcel No. 12/2/1/26-2, dated February 2, 2021.

Right-of-Way Easement Agreement between 611 Land Development, LLC and Ertle Development,
LLC for the location, construction, operation, maintenance, alteration, and replacement of roadways

and appurtenances thereto.

Sewer Easement to be Extinguished Plan prepared by Benchmark Civil Engineering Services, Inc.,
dated April 8, 2024.

Lot closure reports for Lot #1 — North, Lot #1 — South, Lot #1 — North — Net, Lot #1 — South — Net,
Lot #2, Lot #2 Net.

Sanitary sewer response letter prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated January 25, 2025.

PADEP Sewage Facilities Planning Module Application Mailer with Project Narrative and sewage
flow data, location map. PA DCNR PNDI Search Receipt, and plans.

6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 2 of 12

.\ § Pocono Township Planning Commission

e Pocono and Hamilton Townships Regional Sewer System Reservation of Sewer Capacity Application.
e Cost Estimate for Sewer Line Improvements.
e Construction Cost Estimate for Constructed Wetland Basin dated February 26, 2025.

e Engineer’s Opinion of Construction Costs for Lot #1 Improvements along State Route 0611 and Drive
A dated February 18, 2025.

e Will-serve letter prepared by Brodhead Creek Regional Authority, dated May 15, 2024.
e Email correspondence from Pocono Township Volunteer Fire Company dated February 26, 2025.
¢ Community/Financial Impact Analysis prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated February 10, 2025.

e Individual NPDES Submission prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated May 7, 2024, revised January
16, 2025.

e Geotechnical Engineering Report prepared by Midlantic Engineering, Inc., dated October 20, 2021.
e Stormwater Management Report prepared for Ertle Development, LLC Retail Store with Vehicle

Fueling Station prepared by Bohler, dated October 4, 2023, revised July 25, 2024 with drainage area
plans and PCSM Plan.

e Stormwater Gutter Flow Addendum prepared for Ertle Development, LLC Route 611/Bartonsville

Avenue Wawa Convenience Market, prepared by Benchmark Civil Engineering Services, Inc., dated
December 2023.

e Post Construction Stormwater Management Report Volumes I and II prepared by Devco Infra dated
March 7, 2024, last revised January 13, 2025 and February 26, 2025, respectively.

e Vehicle Turning Movement Plan for WB-65 Truck Exiting North (1 sheet) prepared by Devco Infra,
LLC, dated March 7, 2024, revised January 14, 2025.

e Final Minor Subdivision Plan (17 sheets) prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated March 7, 2024, last
revised February 26, 2025.

e Post Construction Stormwater Management Plan (63 sheets) prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated
March 7, 2024, revised February 26, 2025.

e Preliminary Land Development Plan (84 sheets) prepared by Devco Infra, LLC, dated March 7, 2024,
revised February 26, 2025.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, 611 Land Development LLC, is proposing to subdivide a 46.503 acre property located
along the northern side of SR 0611 between Bartonsville Avenue and Frantz Road. The site has frontage
on all three (3) roadways and is located in Pocono, Hamilton, and Stroud Townships. A 0.137 acre portion



£

§ A, Pocono Township Planning Commission
.'} 611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel
Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3

March 6, 2025

Page 3 of 12

of the existing property is located across Frantz Road (on the northestern corner of the intersection of
Frantz Road and S.R. 0611). The property is located in the C-Commercial District in Pocono Township.
The natural resource areas present on the site include wetlands, streams, woodlands, and steep slopes. A
vacant house and several out-buildings are also located on the site.

Proposed Lot No. 1 is shown to be 41.826 acres and Lot No. 2 as 4.677 acres. The plans propose
development of Lot No. 1 with a stormwater infiltration basin while Lot No. 2 will be developed with a
proposed hotel with a total of 120 rooms; 60 for Springhill Suites and 60 for Townplace Suites. A new
access drive will be constructed from SR 0611 within Hamilton Township. The developed area is mostly
within Hamilton Township; however, a loading area, and a portion of the proposed parking and dumpster
areas are within Pocono Township. A stormwater infiltration basin on Lot No. 1 is also within Pocono
Township. The site will be served by public water and sewer.

The plans were accepted by the Township Planning Commission at its meeting held on April 8, 2024.

Based upon our review of the submitted information and our previous review letter dated December 5,
2024, we offer the following comments and/or recommendations for your consideration.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1. In accordance with Section 470-20.B.(1)(gg), “customary accessory uses incidental to the above
permitted uses™ are permitted.

a. During the proposed land development, the existing dwelling (principal use) on Proposed
Lot #1 will be removed. However, the existing garage, barn, shed, and chicken coop are
shown to remain. The existing accessory uses shall be removed with the existing dwelling
(principal use). (Previous Comment 1) The existing shed and chicken coop are now shown
as to be removed. The response letter indicates the existing garage and barn are structurally
sound and will remain. The existing garage and barn are accessory uses and cannot remain
without a principal use. The existing structures shall be removed or relief from the Zoning
Ordinance will be required. (Previous Comment 1) The response letter indicates a variance
will be sought as needed to keep the existing garage and barn. The Zoning Officer shall
determine whether the existing garage and barn may remain without a primary use or if a
variance will be required.

b. Previous Comment 1.b satisfied.
2.-5. Previous Comments 2 thorough 5 satisfied.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

One (1) waiver is requested from the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance as discussed in
Comment 21.

MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN COMMENTS

The following items are required in support of the Minor Subdivision Plan (Sheet C-101).



Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 4 of 12

In accordance with Sections 390-18.B.(6)(c) and 390-18.E, the applicant shall be responsible for
submission of the plan and all required supporting documentation to the Monroe County
Planning Commission. “No official action shall be taken by the Board of Commissioners until
either the Township has received the comments of the Monroe County Planning Commission or
a period of 30 days has expired following transmittal of the preliminary plan to the County
Planning Commission.” Proof of submission to and comments from the County Planning
Commission shall be provided to the Township. (Previous Comment 6) A response to the April
17, 2024 Monroe County Planning Commission comments was provided with this submission.
No further action required.

In accordance with Sections 390-18.F, 390-28.C.(2), and 390-29.J.(8)(a), the Township shall
concurrently make its decision on the sewage facilities planning module, and, if approval is
granted, the completed sewage planning documents shall be forwarded to the Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Protection. Minor subdivision plan approval shall be conditional
upon Department of Environmental Protection sewage planning approval. Sewage planning
shall be completed and approved by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection
(PADEP). (Previous Comment 7) All correspondences with, submissions to, and permit from
PADEP for sewage planning shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-27.A.(3), “the survey shall not have an error of closure greater
than one in 10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report”. In addition, and in
accordance with Section 390-27.B.(11), the Minor Subdivision Plan shall include “sufficient
data, acceptable to the Township, to determine readily the location, bearing and length of every
boundary, road or lot line. All dimensions shall be shown in feet and hundredths of a foot. All
bearings shall be shown to the nearest one second of an arc.” Lot closure reports shall be
submitted in support of the Proposed Lots #1 and #2. (Previous Comment 8) The following
comments related to the submitted lot closure reports shall be addressed.

a. Lines 13 and 14 in the Line Table on Sheet C-106 are consistent with the Lot I-North
closure report, however the bearing and/or distances are inconsistent with the Lot 2
closure report. (Previous Comment 8.a) Line 14 still needs to be corrected for consistency
with the Lot #1 — North, Lot #1 — North — Net, Lot #2, and Lot #2 Net closure reports.
(Previous Comment 8) The bearing along Line 14 is listed as SW on the plan and SE in
the closure report. It appears the plan shall be revised to reference SE.

b.-c. Previous Comments 8.b and 8.c satisfied.
Previous Comments 9 through 20 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(10), “lot lines should follow municipal and county
boundary lines, rather than cross them. Reserve strips controlling access to lots, public rights-of-
way, public lands or adjacent private lands are prohibited.” In addition, and in accordance with
Section 390-47.C.(2), “lots divided by municipal boundaries shall be avoided. Where a
subdivision is divided by a municipal boundary, the applicant shall so notify the governing body
of each municipality affected so that an administrative agreement for the platting and taxing of
lots between the municipalities can be executed, if such agreement is necessary.™ The proposed
subdivision creates Proposed Lot #2 which crosses the existing municipal boundary line shared
between Hamilton Township and Pocono Township. The plan shall be revised. (From Previous



22,

Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 5 of 12

Comment 21) A waiver was requested to permit the subdivision line to cross the municipal
boundary line. The requested waiver was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission
at its meeting held on February 10, 2025.

Previous Comment 22 satisfied.

LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN COMMENTS

23.

In accordance with Section 390-16.C.(3), “the applicant shall be responsible for submission of
the plan and all required supporting documentation to the Monroe County Planning Commission,
the Monroe County Conservation District, PennDOT, and all other governing agencies™. In
addition, and in accordance with Section 390-29.J.(19), the Land Development Plan shall include
“copies of all other required permits or the applications made thereof”. Submissions to,
correspondences with, and approval from the following outside agencies shall be provided to
Pocono Township:

a. Monroe County Planning Commission

Per Section 390-16.F, “no official action shall be taken by the Board of Commissioners until
either the Township has received the comments of the Monroe County Planning
Commission, or a period of 30 days has expired following transmittal of the preliminary plan
to the County Planning Commission”. (Previous Comment 23.a) A response to the April 17,
2024 Monroe County Planning Commission comments was provided with this submission.
No further action required.

b. Monroe County Conservation District/Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection — Erosion Control Adequacy and NPDES Permit — An Incompleteness Letter
dated April 19, 2024 was issued by the Monroe County Conservation District. (Previous
Comment 23.b) A revised submission was made to the County Conservation District on
January 17, 2025 and the application was deemed complete by the County Conservation
District under cover letter dated February 19, 2025.

c. Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection — Sewage Facilities Planning Module

Per Section 390-16.G, “the Township shall concurrently make its decision on the sewage
facilities planning module, and if approval is granted, the completed sewage planning
documents shall be forwarded to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection.
Preliminary plan approval shall be conditional upon Department of Environmental
Protection sewage planning approval.” (Previous Comment 23.c) A review by the Township
Sewer Engineer was distributed on February 4, 2025. A copy of a revised submission to
Hamilton Township under cover letter dated February 12, 2025 was shared with this

office.

d. Pennsylvania Department of Transportation — Highway Occupancy Permit

Per Section 390-16.H, “if a highway occupancy permit shall be required for access to a
Township or state road, approval of the preliminary plan shall be conditional upon the
issuance of a highway occupancy permit by the Township and/or PennDOT, as the case may



=

28.-31.

32.

33.

34.

35.-36.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 6 of 12

be”. (Previous Comment 23.d) A revised submission was made to PennDOT under cover
letter dated February 18, 2025.

e. Pocono Township Sewer — sanitary sewer service design and capacity (Previous Comment
23.¢) The comments provided in the Sanitary Sewer Engineer’s letter dated February 4,
2025 shall be addressed.

f. Brodhead Creek Regional Authority — water service will-serve and sewage treatment
capacity (Previous Comment 23.f) A Will Serve letter dated May 15, 2024 was submitted.

Pocono Township Volunteer Fire Company (Previous Comment 23.g) The Fire Company
responded on February 26, 2025 with no comments.

0w

Previous Comments 24 through 26 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(11), “if land to be subdivided lies partly in or abuts another
municipality, the applicant shall submit information concerning the location and proposed design
of roads, layout and size of lots and provisions of public improvements on land subject to his
control within the adjoining municipalities. The design of public improvements shall provide for
a smooth, practical transition where specifications vary between municipalities. Evidence of
approval of this information by appropriate officials of the adjoining municipalities also shall be
submitted.” (Previous Comment 27) Evidence of approval by Hamilton Township shall be
provided upon receipt.

Previous Comments 28 through 31 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.J.(10) and 390-51.A, all soil erosion and sedimentation
control plans shall meet the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA
DEP, and shall comply with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department
of Environmental Protection regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control. An
Incompleteness Letter dated April 19, 2024 was issued by the Monroe County Conservation
District. (From Previous Comment 32) A revised submission was made to the County
Conservation District on January 17, 2025 and the application was deemed complete by the
County Conservation District under cover letter dated February 19, 2025. All submissions to,
correspondence with, and approvals from the Conservation District shall be provided.

Previous Comment 33 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.J.(15) and 390-48.T.(10), where access is to a state road, a
valid state highway occupancy permit shall be obtained prior to plan recording. Where PennDOT
standards differ from those of the Township, the more restrictive regulations shall apply. A/l
submissions to, correspondences with, and permit from PennDOT shall be provided. (Previous
Comment 34) A revised submission was made to PennDOT under cover letter dated February
18, 2025. All submissions to, correspondences with, and permit from PennDOT shall be
provided.

Previous Comments 35 and 36 satisfied.



37.

38.-42

43.

44,

45.-51.

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 7 of 12

%i\% Pocono Township Planning Commission

In accordance with Section 390-32.B and Section 390-41, no final plan shall be signed by the
Board of Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds
until:
1) All improvements required by this chapter are installed to the specifications contained in
Article VI of this chapter and other Township requirements and such improvements are
certified by the applicant's engineer; or

2) Proposed developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with § 390-35 and the
Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted
by the Board of Commissioners.

(New Comment) A construction cost estimate has been submitted for improvements related to
the proposed Wetland Basin located within Pocono Township. The estimate will be reviewed
under separate cover.

Previous Comments 37 through 41 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-48.AA, “sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required where
necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities
and common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-
of-way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to
accommodate road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be
constructed in accord with the most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans With
Disabilities Act standards.” A Monroe County Transit Authority (MCTA) bus stop is currently
located at the northeastern corner of SR 611 and Bartonsville Avenue. Sidewalks shall be
provided along all project street frontages; SR 611, Bartonsville Avenue, and Frantz Road to
facilitate safe pedestrian circulation. (From Previous Comment 42) The proposed sidewalk east
of the new driveway ends at the beginning of the proposed right-turn lane. This area of
sidewalk is located in Hamilton Township and should be provided as required by Hamilton
Township.

In accordance with Section 390-52.A.(1), “all subdivisions and land developments shall be
served by an adequate water supply and sewage disposal system; and the developer shall provide
evidence documenting said adequacy™. Approvals from the Brodhead Creek Water Authority,
Pocono Township, and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection shall be
received in support of the water and sanitary sewer services. (Previous Comment 43) A Will-
Serve letter has been issued by the Brodhead Creek Regional Authority. Approvals for
sanitary sewer from Pocono Township and PADEP shall still be provided-

Previous Comments 44 through 50 satisfied.
In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(1)(a), ““all subdivisions and land developments shall be
landscaped with property line buffers that act to integrate new development with its surroundings

and to separate incompatible land uses.™

a. In accordance with Table 390-55-1, a 10-foot wide low intensity buffer consisting of nine
(9) canopy trees and five (5) ornamental trees are required along the western property line



53.-54.

55.

56.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 8 of 12

(418.96-feet). In addition, and in accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(g), “existing healthy
trees, shrubs, or woodlands may be substituted for part or all of the required plants with the
approval of the Township. The minimum quantities and/or visual effect of the existing
vegetation shall be equal to or exceed that of the required buffer as determined by the
Township.” No trees are proposed along the western property line, however existing trees
are proposed to remain. The required trees shall be provided, or the Applicant shall
demonstrate the existing trees meet the intent of the required buffer. (Previous Comment
51.a) Three (3) canopy trees are now proposed along the new driveway and parking area
and 3 ornamental trees are now proposed on the western side of Wetland Basin-1. The
Applicant is proposing to utilize the new trees with the existing woodlands to remain to
meet this requirement.

A partial waiver is required for use of the existing woodlands. Photographs of the existing
woodlands in support of the waiver request shall be presented to the Township.

b. In accordance with Table 390-55-1, a 10-foot wide low intensity buffer consisting of five (5)
canopy trees and three (3) ornamental trees are required along the northern property line
(216.32-feet £). No trees are proposed, and the plan shall be revised. (Previous Comment
51.b) No trees are proposed. Woodlands exist between proposed Wetland Basin-1 and the
northern property line. The Applicant is proposing to utilize the existing woodlands to
remain to meet this requirement.

A partial waiver is required for use of the existing woodlands. Photographs of the existing
woodlands in support of the waiver request shall be presented to the Township.

Previous Comments 52 and 53 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-58.E, “any subdivision or land development regulated under this
§ 390-58 shall be required to dedicate the specified amount of common open space, unless the
Board of Commissioners and the applicant mutually agree to the payment of recreation fees-in-
lieu of land, the construction of recreational facilities, the reservation/donation of common open
space through an allowed alternative ownership method, or a combination of any of the
foregoing™. Prior to final plan approval the developer shall determine whether common open
space will be proposed or if a fee-in-lieu of will be provided. (Previous Comment 54) The
response letter suggests the 19.08 acres of Common Open Space is proposed. Per Section 390-
58.G, the Applicant shall discuss with the Township whether common open space or a fee in-
lieu-of will be required.

In accordance with Section 390-60.A, “traffic impact study shall be submitted to the Township,
as part of a preliminary plan and final plan for any subdivision or land development application
expected to generate more than 250 new trips per day; for residential subdivisions or land
developments containing 15 or more dwelling units or residential lots in the aggregate; or all
nonresidential developments (with the exception of agricultural development) with buildings
containing in excess of 20,000 square feet of floor space in the aggregate; development-of any
kind impacting 30 acres of land or more in the aggregate.” The required traffic impact study
shall be submitted for review. (Previous Comment 55) The proposed development will include
-a full access driveway onto S.R. 0611 and a 150 linear foot right-turn lane into the project
site from S.R. 0611 north. The project will generate 750 additional vehicles during the typical



Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 9 of 12

weekday. The Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) notes that the Cranberry Creek Apartments,
the Wawas at Cherry Lane/Warner Road and Bartonsville Avenue, the Golden Slipper
hospital development, and the Turtle Walk motor vehicle dealership were all considered in the
analysis. The TIA further indicates the proposed development is not anticipated to impact
traffic operations within the area of the development.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Waivers are requested from the Stormwater Management Ordinance as discussed in Comments 57, 58,
59, and 60.

The project site is located within the C, Provisional Direct Discharge District of the Brodhead-McMichael
Watershed. The receiving water is Pocono Creek which has a Chapter 93 classification of High Quality,
Cold Water Fishery (HQ/CWF).

37,

58.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(b)[1], wetland buffer permitted activities/development
includes “stormwater conveyance required by the municipality or other body or agency having
jurisdiction; buffer maintenance and restoration; the correction of hazardous conditions; stream
crossings permitted by DEP and passive unpaved stable trails shall be permitted within the
wetland buffer. No other earth disturbance, grading, filling, buildings, structures, new
construction, or development shall be permitted within the wetland buffer.” The proposed
grading, driveway, and parking area are not permitted activities in the wetland buffer, and the
plan shall be revised for compliance with this Section. (From Previous Comment 56) The
wetland buffer impacts have been added to Sheets CLS-1 and CLS-2. Disturbance of the wetland
buffer is still proposed and shall be addressed. (Previous Comment 56) A waiver was requested
to allow unpermitted activities within the required wetland buffer. The Planning Commission
recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on February 10, 2025.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(b)[2], the area of the wetland buffer altered by activities
permitted in accordance with Subsection [(6)(b)[1] above shall be minimized to the greatest
extent practicable, as determined by the municipality. In no case shall more than 20% of the
cumulative wetland buffer on the subject parcel be altered by the activities permitted in
accordance with Subsection I(6)(b)[1]. This 20% disturbance shall include both the disturbance
created by the applicant and any subsequent owner of the parcel or a portion of the parcel
developed by the applicant (i.e., lot owner).” The plan shall include a calculation showing the
area of existing wetland buffer and the area of disturbed buffer (in acres and percent) to confirm
compliance with this Section for activities permitted in Section 365-10.1(6)(b)[1]. (Previous
Comment 57) Calculations have been added to Sheets CLS-1 and CLS-2. The calculations shall
be revised to include the percent of the disturbed buffer area. In addition, the area of disturbance
of the wetland buffer listed on Sheet CLS-1 is 164 square feet for the removal of the existing
chicken coop. However, the existing house and shed that are proposed to be removed are also
located within the wetland buffer and shall be included in the calculation on Sheet CLS-1. Areas
to access the existing chicken coop and shed shall also be shown on the plan as disturbed area
and included in the calculation on Sheet CLS-1. In addition, the calculation on Sheet CLS-1
does not account for the areas disturbed for proposed grading, driveway, and parking area, and
shall be revised accordingly. (Previous Comment 57) A waiver was requested to allow
unpermitted activities within the required wetland buffer. The Planning Commission



59.

60.

61.-66.

67.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 10 of 12

recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on February 10, 2025.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(8)(b), stream buffer permitted activities/development,
includes “stormwater conveyance required by the municipality or other body or agency having
jurisdiction, buffer maintenance and restoration, the correction of hazardous conditions, stream
crossings permitted by DEP, fish hatcheries, wildlife sanctuaries and boat launch sites
constructed so as not to increase the floodplain elevation, and unpaved trails, shall be permitted,
providing no buildings are involved. No other earth disturbance, grading, filling, buildings,
structures, new construction, or development shall be permitted.” The demolition of the existing
house, chicken coop, and shed, and proposed grading, driveway, and parking area are located
within the required stream buffer. (From Previous Comment 58) The stream buffer impacts have
been added to Sheets CLS-1 and CLS-2. Disturbance of the stream buffer is still proposed and
shall be addressed. (Previous Comment 58) A waiver was requested to allow unpermitted
activities within the required stream buffer. The Planning Commission recommended
approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on February 10, 2025.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(8)(c), “the area of the [stream] buffer altered by activities
permitted in accordance with § 365-10I(8)(b) shall be minimized to the greatest extent
practicable, as determined by the municipality. In no case shall more than 20% of the cumulative
stream buffer on the subject parcel be altered by the activities permitted in accordance with
§ 365-10I(8)(b). This 20% disturbance shall include both the disturbance created by the applicant
and any subsequent owner of the parcel or a portion of the parcel developed by the applicant
(i.e., lot owner).” The plan shall include a calculation showing the area of the existing stream
buffer and the area of the disturbed buffer (in acres and percent) to confirm compliance with
this Section for activities permitted in Section 365-10.1(8)(b). (Previous Comment 59)
Disturbance calculations have been added to Sheets CLS-1 and CLS-2 and are noted to be 2,450
square feet for the proposed house, chicken coop, and shed. It appears the disturbance should
be 5,000 square feet +. In addition, the area does not account for the proposed grading,
driveway, or parking area. The calculation shall be revised accordingly. The calculations shall
also be revised to include the percent of the disturbed buffer area. Areas to access the existing
chicken coop and shed shall also be shown on the plan as disturbed area and included in the
calculation on Sheet CLS-1. (Previous Comment 59) A waiver was requested to allow
unpermitted activities within the required stream buffer. The Planning Commission
recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on February 10, 2025.

Previous Comments 60 to 65 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 365-15.A, 365-19.A.(4), 365-20.C.(2), and 365-21.C, any earth
disturbance must be conducted in conformance with Pennsylvania Title 25, Chapter 102, Erosion
and Sediment Control. An erosion and sediment control plan, including all reviews and letters
of adequacy obtained by the Conservation District shall be provided. An Incompleteness Letter
dated April 19, 2024 was issued by the Monroe County Conservation District. (From Previous
Comment 66) A revised submission was made to the County Conservation District on January
17, 2025 and the application was deemed complete by the County Conservation District under
cover letter dated February 19, 2025. All submissions to, correspondences with, and permit
from the County Conservation District shall be provided.



\ A Pocono Township Planning Commission
.ﬁ 611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel
Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3

March 6, 2025

Page 11 of 12

68-71. Previous Comments 67 through 70 satisfied.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND STORM SEWER DESIGN COMMENTS

72.-79. Previous Comments 71 through 78 satisfied.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

80. Plans have previously been submitted to PennDOT for intersection improvements at S.R. 0611
and Bartonsville Avenue/Rimrock Road. Part of those improvements include a right-turn lane
starting at the municipal boundary with Hamilton Township. The proposed right-turn lane is
now shown on the plan and labeled as “Pocono Twp. Future Road Improvement Project”.

While Pocono Township is the initiator of the project, the Township is partnering with
developers to complete the improvements. The developer of the Wawa project site located across
Bartsonville Avenue is proposing improvements along S.R. 0611 in close proximity to the
Springhill Suites project site. 611 Land Development, LLC shall coordinate with the Wawa
developer on the extent of those improvements. (Previous Comment 79) The response letter
indicates the proposed S.R. 0611 improvements for this Springhill Suites development are
being coordinated with the Wawa development located across Bartonsville Avenue.

81. The Subdivision Plan proposes use of only a small portion of the parcel. The Applicant shall
provide additional information on the intended use for the remainder of the property. (Previous
Comment 80) The response letter indicates the owner/developer currently has no plans for the
remainder of the property.

82.-91. Previous Comments 81 through 90 satisfied.

PLAN REVISION COMMENTS

92-97.  Previous Comments 91 through 96 satisfied.

98. Easement Description Plans have been added to the plan set and will be reviewed under separate
cover. (New Comment)

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with
the intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the nature of the comments
in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township prior to
approval of the Final Minor Subdivision Plan and the Preliminary Land Development Plan.



%I\ i\ Pocono Township Planning Commission

611 Land Development, LLC — Dual Brand Hotel

Final Minor Subdivision & Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 3
March 6, 2025

Page 12 of 12

[f you should have any questions, please call me.

Sincerely,

\ - .

Jon'R§. Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/meh

oe: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager

Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer

Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor

Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP

611 Land Development, LLC — Applicant

Joseph Stachokus, P.E. — Devco Infra, LLC

Nate Oiler, P.E., RKR Hess — Hamilton Township Engineer
Kristina Heaney — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates

Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0630\Correspondence\Review Letters\61 1 Land Development_Plan.Review.No.3.docx



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-08

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE
AMENDED SWIFTWATER SOLAR
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN - PHASE A

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Swiftwater Solar LLC, submitted a plan application titled
“Swiftwater Solar Project Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan” (the “Plan”). The
Applicant proposed to construct solar panel fields, a substation, and various stormwater
facilities. The property is located in the RD Recreation Zoning District and is known as
portions of Monroe County Tax ID Nos. 12/16/1 and 12/111903; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters dated
July 16, 2021, January 20, 2022, and April 20, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission (the “P.C.”) recommended conditional
preliminary/final plan approval at its meeting held on April 25, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners granted Conditional Plan
Approval by way of its Resolution 2022-24 on June 6, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted an amended Preliminary/Final Land Development
Phase A — Stormwater Management dated December 6, 2024 (the “Phase A Plan”) in
conjunction with a revised E&S Report and Compliance Narrative and revised PCSM Report

and Compliance Narrative both dated October 18, 2024 (collectively the “Phase A Submittal™)
and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Phase A Submittal and offered
comments in his letter dated, February 19, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the P.C. recommended conditional preliminary/final plan approval of the Phase
A Plan at its meeting held on March 10, 2025; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the “Amended Swiftwater Solar Project Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan
— Phase A Stormwater Management” as shown on the Phase A Plan prepared by Timmons
Group, dated May 28, 2021, as revised, be hereby approved with the following conditions and

provided the Plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and approval of the Township
Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The Applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the

Township Engineer’s letters dated July 16, 2021, January 20, 2022, April 20, 2022 and,
February 19, 2025.



The Applicant shall enter into an Improvements Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

3. The Applicant shall enter into a Maintenance Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

4. The Applicant shall enter into a Stormwater Management and Maintenance Agreement with
the Township.

5. The Applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from all other governmental and
regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection and the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, prior to
presenting the Plan for signatures.

6. The Applicant shall meet all conditions of the preliminary/final plan approval, and Plan shall
be recorded within twelve (12) months of Conditional Plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional Plan approval will be considered void.

7. The Applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners Resolution, otherwise the Plan is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the

Township of Pocono the day of , 2025,

ATTEST: Township of Pocono

Board of Commissioners

By: By:

Jerrod Belvin Richard Wielebinski

Township Manager President



AN\
0 IR A
{.'\. " YOUR GOALS. DUR MISSIOI,

February 19, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SWIFTWATER SOLAR PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
AMENDED PLAN REVIEW NO. 1 -PHASE A STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1375, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0624

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our first review of the Amended Preliminary/Final
Land Development Plan for Swiftwater Solar. The submitted information was prepared by Timmons
Group and consists of the following items.

e Amended Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan dated September 24, 2021, revised December 6, 2024.
e E&S Report and Compliance Narrative dated May 28, 2021, revised October 18, 2024.

o PCSM Report and Compliance Narrative dated May 28, 2021, revised October 18, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The site is located east of Interstate Route 380 (SR 0380), north and adjacent to Sullivan Trail Road (SR
4004) and Back Mountain Road, west of Summit Road and south of Swiftwater Creek. The property is
located within the RD, Recreation Zoning District. The Applicant is leasing Tax Map Parcel 12/16/1/, 1
and a large portion of Tax Map Parcel 12/111903 for the project. The total leased area of the site is 643.99
acres, of which 471.20 acres are proposed to be disturbed. The site consists of woodlands, steep slopes,
wetlands, a pond, and an existing private road which takes access from Back Mountain Road. Parcel
12/111903 has Floodway and Floodplain Area along Swiftwater Creek; however, the Floodway and
Floodplain are outside of the leased area of the site.

The proposed development will include the construction of a fenced enclosure, solar panel fields, a
substation, gravel access roads, underground electric lines, and sixteen (16) infiltration detention basins.
The site drains to three different watersheds: Swiftwater Creek to the North, Dry Sawmill Run to the
Southwest, and Scot Run to the Southeast. Access to the property will be via a single driveway entrance
from Back Mountain Road. Water and sewer service are not proposed for this project.

This amended plan removes the bulk site grading and includes impervious areas such as the MV
Skids and the substation.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com




Pocono Township Planning Commission

N :
'\. Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development

Amended Plan Review No. 1 — Phase A Stormwater Management
February 19, 2025
Page 2 of 4

This review includes Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance
Comments related to the entire project site, and comments related to the stormwater management
design in Phase D only. Separate reviews will be provided for Phases B, C, and D.

Based on our review of the above information, we offer the following comments and/or recommendations
for your consideration.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Comments 1 through 6 discuss waivers that were previously requested from the Subdivision and Land
Development Ordinance and granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022.

1.

o

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(1), “wherever there exists a dedicated or platted portion of
a road or alley along a boundary of the tract being subdivided or developed the remainder of said
road or alley shall be platted to the width required by this chapter based on the classification of the
road within the proposed development™. 4 waiver fiom Section 390-48.H.(1) was granted by the
Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to not required widening of Sullivan
Trail and Summit Road. This amended plan does not change or provide access to and does not
change the volume of traffic along Sullivan Trail or Summit Road.

In accordance with Section 390-48.K.(2), “the private access road shall not exceed 750 feet in
length as measured from the edge of the right-of-way of the abutting road to the point of connection
to the lot. The width of the private access road shall conform to Table 390-48-1. Any proposed
road exceeding the seven-hundred-fifty-foot length shall comply with all normal standards which
apply to road construction.” A waiver fiom Section 390-48.K.(2) was granted by the Board of
Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the proposed private access road to
be longer than 750-feet and to not meet the requirements of Table 390-48-1. This amended plan
does not revise the proposed private access road.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(4), “the maximum water depth, measured from the invert
of the lowest outlet orifice to the peak one-hundred-year water surface elevation, shall not exceed
five feet™. A waiver from Section 390-50.D.(4) was granted by the Board of Commissioners at its
meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the stormwater stored in the proposed basins to have a
depth greater than 5-feet. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the
previous request. Further review of Basin 305 is pending receipt of the proposed re-design.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(5), “the maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical”. A waiver firom Section 390-50.D.(5) was
granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the grading
at the proposed basins to exceed a slope of 4: 1. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan
does not alter the previous request.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(7), “the minimum top width of the detention basin berm
shall be 10 feet”. A waiver from Section 390-50.D.(7) was granted by the Board of Commissioners
at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to not require a berm width of 10-feet in cut sections. The
basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous request.



Pocono Township Planning Commission

Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development

Amended Plan Review No. | — Phase A Stormwater Management
February 19, 2025

Page 3 of 4

74

6. In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(8), ““in order to ensure proper drainage on the basin bottom,
a minimum grade of 2% shall be maintained for areas of sheet flow. For channel flow, a minimum
grade of 1% shall be maintained.” A waiver from Section 390-50.D.(8) was granted by the Board
of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit flat bottom basins. The basin
design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous request.

7. In accordance with Section 390-51.A, “all soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall meet
the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply with
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control™. The amended Land Development Plan
shall meet the requirements of Chapter 102 and will require an amendment to the existing NPDES
Permit. All submissions to, correspondences with, and permit from the County Conservation
District shall be provided.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Comments 8 and 9 discuss waivers that were previously requested from the Stormwater Management
Ordinance and granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022.

8. In accordance with Section 365-11.A.(3), the size of the recharge facility shall be based on the
volume criteria in Subsection (a). 4 waiver from Section 365-11.4.(3) was granted by the Board
of Commissioners at its meeting on June 6, 2022 to permit the use of the PADEP water quality
spreadsheets to satisfy this requirement. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does
not alter the previous request.

9. In accordance with Sections 365-13.B and D, “all calculations consistent with this chapter using
the Soil Cover Complex Method shall use the appropriate design rainfall depths for the various
return period storms according to the region in which they are located as presented in Table B-1
in Appendix Al of this chapter™. Waivers from Sections 365-13.B and 365-13.D were granted
by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting on June 6, 2022 to permit the use of the NOAA
rainfall data. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous
request.

10. In accordance with Section 365-15, “for all regulated earth disturbance activities, erosion and
sediment control BMPs shall be designed, implemented, operated, and maintained during the
regulated earth disturbance activities (e.g., during construction) to meet the purposes and
requirements of this chapter and to meet all requirements under Title 25 of the Pennsylvania Code
and the Clean Streams Law. Various BMPs and their design standards are listed in the Erosion and
Sediment Pollution Control Program Manual (E&S Manual3), No. 363-2134-008, as amended and
updated.” The amended Land Development Plan shall meet the requirements of Chapter 102 and
will require an amendment to the existing NPDES Permit. All submissions to, correspondences
with, and permit from the County Conservation District shall be provided.

STORM SEWER AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN COMMENTS

11. A Unit Hydrograph Summary showing the drainage area and CN value shall be provided in support
of the post development peak flow calculation for Basin 201.



4.\§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

'. Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development
Amended Plan Review No. | — Phase A Stormwater Management

February 19, 2025

Page 4 of 4

12. The emergency spillway width of Basin 201 is inconsistent with the approved width (36-feet
currently and 34-feet approved).

The above comments are related to previously approved waivers, outside agency approvals, and general
revisions to the plans and reports. We recommend the Township approve Phase A with conditions.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me.

Sincerely,

Township Engineer
JST/meh

cc: Jerrod Belvin, Manager — Pocono Township

Lindsay Scerbo, Zoning Officer — Pocono Township
Leo DeVito, Esquire — Township Solicitor

Lisa Pereira, Esquire — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Daniel Jamison, P.E., Timmons Group

Colby Dechiara, Timmons Group

Amanda Mills, Narenco

Ralph A. Matergia, Esquire

David Velasco, VC Renewables

James M. Cahill, Pocono Mountain Investors
Kristina Heaney, Manager — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0624\Correspondence\Review Lettersi2024 Amended Plan\Swiftwater.Solar.2024. Amended. Plan_Review #1_Phase A.docx



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 09

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE MENDEZ
LOT CONSOLIDATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the applicant, Rogelio Mendez, submitted a lot consolidation plan application
titled “Mendez Lot Consolidation Plan” (the “Plan”). The Plan proposes to consolidate three
existing parcels into one parcel having an area of 1.04 acres. The existing parcels are
identified as Monroe County Tax Parcel I.D. Nos. 12.9A.2.2, 12.9A.2.9 and 12.9A.2.8-1; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters
dated March 10, 2025 and March 18, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desire to grant the conditional
approval of the Plan, subject to the following.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the “Mendez Lot Consolidation Plan” as shown on the lot consolidation plan prepared by
Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated December 23, 2024, as revised, be hereby approved with the
following conditions and provided the plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and
approval of the Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated March 10, 2025 and March 18, 2025.

N

The applicant shall provide the Township with a copy of the proposed deed of consolidation,
which deed shall be recorded concurrently with the Plan.

3. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including but not limited to

any outstanding plan account charges and all professional services fees, prior to the recording
of the Plan.

4. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental agencies
prior to presenting the Plan for signatures.

5. The applicant shall provide the requisite number of plans which are signed and notarized by
the owner and sealed by the engineer.

2

The applicant shall meet all conditions of the final plan approval, and Plan shall be recorded
within twelve (12) months of Conditional final plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional final plan approval will be considered void.



7. The applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners Resolution, otherwise the application is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the
Township of Pocono the day of , 2025.

ATTEST: Township of Pocono
Board of Commissioners

By: By:
Print Name: Jerrod Belvin Print Name: Richard Wielebinski
Title: Township Manager Title: President




N
D
4. '\. | YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSIOH.

March 18, 2025

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: MENDEZ LOT CONSOLIDATION -297 LAUREL LAKE ROAD
LOT COMBINATION PLAN REVIEW NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1442, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R1120

Dear Comumissioners:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our second review of the above referenced project.
The submitted information consists of the following items.

o Response letter prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated March 11, 2025.
e Pennsylvania Quit Claim Deed dated June 24, 2020.
o Land Description prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated March 11, 2025.

o Plan entitled “Mendez Lot Consolidation Plan”, prepared by Barry Isett & Associates, Inc., dated
December 23, 2024, last revised March 11, 2025.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant is proposing to combine three (3) existing properties located on the northwesterly side of Laurel
Lake Road between Michele Lane and Marilou Lane.

A. Existing Parcel 1 (Parcel ID No. 12.9A.2.9), owned by the applicant, has an area of 15,000 square feet
and is located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District. It contains an existing house,
driveway, shed, well, and septic area.

B. Existing Parcel 2 (Parcel ID No. 12.9A.2.2), owned by the applicant, has an area of 15,000 square feet
and is located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District.

C. Existing Parcel 3 (Parcel ID No. 12.9A.2.8-1), owned by the applicant, has an area of 15,436 square
feet and is located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District. It contains apportion of
the existing house and shed.

The minimum lot area required within the R-1; Low Density Residential Zoning District is two (2) acres. All
three lots are existing non-conformities as their lot areas are each less than two (2) acres. Additionally, the
existing house is situated across the common lot line of Parcels 1 and 3. The proposed lot combination will
create a new lot having an area of 1.04 acres which reduces the existing lot size non-conformity and provides
for the house to be on one lot, thereby eliminating that non-conformity. No development is proposed.

Based upon our review of the above information and our previous review letter dated March 10, 2025, we offer
the following comments and/or recommendations for your consideration.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 tandmassociates.com



4.\ § Pocono Township Board of Commissioners

'. Mendez Lot Combination — 297 Laurel Lake Road
Lot Combination Plan Review #2

March 18, 2025

Page 2

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1.

In accordance with Attachment 2 of the Zoning Ordinance, the rear yard setback is required to be a
minimum of 40 feet. [t is noted that the existing house slightly encroaches into the rear yard setback.
While this is an existing non-conformity which is not affected by the proposed combination, the existing
setback dimension shall be labeled on the plan. (Previous Comment 1) The existing 38.97-foot setback
dimension has been added to the plan. No further action is required.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

2.

In accordance with Section 390-18.E, “no official action shall be taken by the Board of Commissioners
until either the Township has received the comments of the Monroe County Planning Commission or a
period of 30 days has expired following transmittal of the preliminary plan to the County Planning
Commission™. 4n MCPC response letter dated February 10, 2025 has been received. The MCPC noted
an acreage discrepancy with the Assessment Records which must be resolved. (Previous Comment 2)
The surveyor’s response states, “The listed area corresponds with the acreage from the original
subdivision lot acreages firom Map Book 36 Page 25.” No further action is required.

3.-10. Previous Comments satisfied.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

11.

-13. Previous Comments satisfied.

All other previous engineering related comments have been satisfactorily addressed.

If you should have any questions, please call me.

Ncerely,

Jon

N\S"\)K/{{L—\

resslar, P.E., P.L.S.

Township Engineer

JST/arm

CC:

Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager

Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer

Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor

Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP

Wade D. Weber, P.L.S. — Barry [sett & Associates, Inc.
Rogelio Mendez — Owner/Applicant

Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates

Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R 1 120\Correspondence\Review Letters\Mendez Lot Consolidation Review No.2.docx



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-10

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE
AMENDED SWIFTWATER SOLAR
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN - PHASE D

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Swiftwater Solar LLC, submitted a plan application titled
“Swiftwater Solar Project Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan” (the “Plan™). The
Applicant proposed to construct solar panel fields, a substation, and various stormwater
facilities. The property is located in the RD Recreation Zoning District and is known as
portions of Monroe County Tax ID Nos. 12/16/1 and 12/111903; and

'WHEREAS, the Township Engineer reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters dated
July 16, 2021, January 20, 2022, and April 20, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission (the “P.C.”) recommended conditional
preliminary/final plan approval at its meeting held on April 25, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners granted Conditional Plan
Approval by way of its Resolution 2022-24 on June 6, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted an amended Preliminary/Final Land Development
Phase D — Stormwater Management dated December 6, 2024 (the “Phase D Plan”) in
conjunction with a revised E&S Report and Compliance Narrative and revised PCSM Report

and Compliance Narrative both dated October 18, 2024 (collectively the “Phase D Submittal”)
and

b

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Phase D Submittal and offered
comments in his letter dated, February 19, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the P.C. recommended conditional preliminary/final plan approval of the Phase
D Plan at its meeting held on March 10, 2025; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the “Amended Swiftwater Solar Project Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan
— Phase D Stormwater Management” as shown on the Phase D Plan prepared by Timmons
Group, dated September 24, 2021, as revised, be hereby approved with the following conditions

and provided the Plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and approval of the
Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The Applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the

Township Engineer’s letters dated July 16, 2021, January 20, 2022, April 20, 2022 and,
February 19, 2025.



The Applicant shall enter into an Improvements Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

3. The Applicant shall enter into a Maintenance Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

4. The Applicant shall enter into a Stormwater Management and Maintenance Agreement with
the Township.

5. The Applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from all other governmental and
regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection and the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, prior to
presenting the Plan for signatures.

6. The Applicant shall meet all conditions of the preliminary/final plan approval, and Plan shall
be recorded within twelve (12) months of Conditional Plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional Plan approval will be considered void.

7. The Applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners Resolution, otherwise the Plan is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the

Township of Pocono the day of s 2025,

ATTEST: Township of Pocono

Board of Commissioners

By: By:

Jerrod Belvin Richard Wielebinski

Township Manager President



A

\ §
. '. ' YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

February 19, 2025

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SWIFTWATER SOLAR PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
AMENDED PLAN REVIEW NO. 1 -PHASE D STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1375, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0624

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our first review of the Amended Preliminary/Final
Land Development Plan for Swiftwater Solar. The submitted information was prepared by Timmons
Group and consists of the following items.

e Amended Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan dated September 24, 2021, revised December 6, 2024.
e E&S Report and Compliance Narrative dated May 28, 2021, revised October 18, 2024.

e PCSM Report and Compliance Narrative dated May 28, 2021, revised October 18, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The site is located east of Interstate Route 380 (SR 0380), north and adjacent to Sullivan Trail Road (SR
4004) and Back Mountain Road, west of Summit Road and south of Swiftwater Creek. The property is
located within the RD, Recreation Zoning District. The Applicant is leasing Tax Map Parcel 12/16/1/, 1
and a large portion of Tax Map Parcel 12/111903 for the project. The total leased area of the site is 643.99
acres, of which 471.20 acres are proposed to be disturbed. The site consists of woodlands, steep slopes,
wetlands, a pond, and an existing private road which takes access from Back Mountain Road. Parcel
12/111903 has Floodway and Floodplain Area along Swiftwater Creek; however, the Floodway and
Floodplain are outside of the leased area of the site.

The proposed development will include the construction of a fenced enclosure, solar panel fields, a
substation, gravel access roads, underground electric lines, and sixteen (16) infiltration detention basins.
The site drains to three different watersheds: Swiftwater Creek to the North, Dry Sawmill Run to the
Southwest, and Scot Run to the Southeast. Access to the property will be via a single driveway entrance
from Back Mountain Road. Water and sewer service are not proposed for this project.

This amended plan removes the bulk site grading and includes impervious areas such as the MV
Skids and the substation.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 Kl 610.625.2999 Nl 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



£

Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development

Amended Plan Review No. | — Phase D Stormwater Management
February 19, 2025

Page 2 of 4

I§§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

This review includes Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance
Comments related to the entire project site, and comments related to the stormwater management
design in Phase D only. Separate reviews will be provided for Phases A, B, and C.

Based on our review of the above information, we offer the following comments and/or recommendations
for your consideration.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Comments 1 through 6 discuss waivers that were previously requested from the Subdivision and Land
Development Ordinance and granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022.

1.

o

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(1), “wherever there exists a dedicated or platted portion of
a road or alley along a boundary of the tract being subdivided or developed the remainder of said
road or alley shall be platted to the width required by this chapter based on the classification of the
road within the proposed development™. A waiver from Section 390-48.H.(1) was granted by the
Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to not required widening of Sullivan
Trail and Summit Road. This amended plan does not change or provide access to and does not
change the volume of traffic along Sullivan Trail or Summit Road.

In accordance with Section 390-48.K.(2), “the private access road shall not exceed 750 feet in
length as measured from the edge of the right-of-way of the abutting road to the point of connection
to the lot. The width of the private access road shall conform to Table 390-48-1. Any proposed
road exceeding the seven-hundred-fifty-foot length shall comply with all normal standards which
apply to road construction.” 4 waiver from Section 390-48.K.(2) was granted by the Board of
Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the proposed private access road to
be longer than 750-feet and to not meet the requirements of Table 390-48-1. This amended plan
does not revise the proposed private access road.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(4), “the maximum water depth, measured from the invert
of the lowest outlet orifice to the peak one-hundred-year water surface elevation, shall not exceed
five feet”. A waiver from Section 390-50.D.(4) was granted by the Board of Commissioners at its
meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the stormwater stored in the proposed basins to have a
depth greater than 5-feet. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the
previous request. Further review of Basin 305 is pending receipt of the proposed re-design.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(5), “the maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical”. 4 waiver from Section 390-50.D.(3) was
granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit the grading
at the proposed basins to exceed a slope of 4:1. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan
does not alter the previous request.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(7), “the minimum top width of the detention basin berm
shall be 10 feet™. 4 waiver from Section 390-50.D.(7) was granted by the Board of Commissioners
at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to not require a berm width of 10-feet in cut sections. The
basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous request.



=\
/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development
Amended Plan Review No. | — Phase D Stormwater Management
February 19, 2025

Page 3 of 4

6. In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(8), “in order to ensure proper drainage on the basin bottom,
a minimum grade of 2% shall be maintained for areas of sheet flow. For channel flow, a minimum
grade of 1% shall be maintained.™ 4 waiver from Section 390-50.D.(8) was granted by the Board
of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022 to permit flat bottom basins. The basin
design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous request.

7. In accordance with Section 390-51.A, “all soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall meet
the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply with
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”. The amended Land Development Plan
shall meet the requirements of Chapter 102 and will require an amendment to the existing NPDES
Permit. All submissions to, correspondences with, and permit from the County Conservation
District shall be provided.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Comments 8 and 9 discuss waivers that were previously requested from the Stormwater Management
Ordinance and granted by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting held on June 6, 2022.

8. In accordance with Section 365-11.A.(3), the size of the recharge facility shall be based on the
volume criteria in Subsection (a). 4 waiver from Section 365-11.4.(3) was granted by the Board
of Commissioners at its meeting on June 6, 2022 to permit the use of the PADEP water quality
spreadsheets to satisfy this requirement. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does
not alter the previous request.

9. In accordance with Sections 365-13.B and D, “all calculations consistent with this chapter using
the Soil Cover Complex Method shall use the appropriate design rainfall depths for the various
return period storms according to the region in which they are located as presented in Table B-1
in Appendix AUl of this chapter™. Waivers from Sections 365-13.B and 365-13.D were granted
by the Board of Commissioners at its meeting on June 6, 2022 to permit the use of the NOAA
rainfall data. The basin design in Phase C of this Amended Plan does not alter the previous
request.

10.  In accordance with Section 365-15, “for all regulated earth disturbance activities, erosion and
sediment control BMPs shall be designed, implemented, operated, and maintained during the
regulated earth disturbance activities (e.g., during construction) to meet the purposes and
requirements of this chapter and to meet all requirements under Title 25 of the Pennsylvania Code
and the Clean Streams Law. Various BMPs and their design standards are listed in the Erosion and
Sediment Pollution Control Program Manual (E&S Manual3), No. 363-2134-008, as amended and
updated.” The amended Land Development Plan shall meet the requirements of Chapter 102 and
will require an amendment to the existing NPDES Permit. All submissions to, correspondences
with, and permit from the County Conservation District shall be provided.

STORM SEWER AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN COMMENTS

11. A Unit Hydrograph Summary showing the drainage area and CN value shall be provided in support
of the post development peak flow calculation for Basin 101.



/ANDI\\ Pocono Township Planning Commission

. '% Swiftwater Solar Preliminary/Final Land Development
Amended Plan Review No. 1 - Phase D Stormwater Management

February 19, 2025

Page 4 of 4

The above comments are related to previously approved waivers, outside agency approvals, and general
revisions to the plans and reports. We recommend the Township approve Phase D with conditions.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me.

Sincerely,

Jon S. Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/meh

cc: Jerrod Belvin, Manager — Pocono Township
Lindsay Scerbo, Zoning Officer — Pocono Township
Leo DeVito, Esquire — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esquire — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Daniel Jamison, P.E., Timmons Group
Colby Dechiara, Timmons Group
Amanda Mills, Narenco
Ralph A. Matergia, Esquire
David Velasco, VC Renewables
James M. Cahill, Pocono Mountain Investors
Kristina Heaney, Manager — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0624\Correspondence\Review Letters\2024 Amended Plan\Swifiwater.Solar.2024. Amended.Plan.Review #1_Phase D.docx



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 11

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE DEFAZIO
LOT JOINDER PLAN

WHEREAS, the applicant, Charles Defazio, submitted a lot joinder plan application titled
“Final Plan — Lot Joinder of Lands of Charles Defazio” (the “Plan”). The Plan proposes
to consolidate three existing parcels into one parcel having an area of 1.9912 acres. The

existing parcels are identified as Monroe County Tax Parcel L.D. Nos. 12.11A.1.16, 12.11A.1.17
and 12.11A.1.18; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters
dated February 26, 2025, March 18, 2025 and March 19, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desire to grant the conditional
approval of the Plan, subject to the following.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the “Final Plan — Lot Joinder of Lands of Charles Defazio” as shown on the lot
consolidation plan prepared by Jonathan Shupp, P.L.S., S.E.O., dated January 30, 2025, as revised,
be hereby approved with the following conditions and provided the plan is revised as follows,
subject to the review and approval of the Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated February 26, 2025, March 18, 2025 and March 19, 2025.

2. The applicant shall provide the Township with a copy of the proposed deed of consolidation,
which deed shall be recorded concurrently with the Plan.

3. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including but not limited to

any outstanding plan account charges and all professional services fees, prior to the recording
of the Plan.

4. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental agencies
prior to presenting the Plan for signatures.

5. The applicant shall provide the requisite number of plans which are signed and notarized by
the owner and sealed by the engineer.

=

The applicant shall meet all conditions of the final plan approval, and Plan shall be recorded
within twelve (12) months of Conditional final plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional final plan approval will be considered void.



7. The applicant shall accept these conditions in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the
Board of Commissioners’ Resolution, otherwise the application is denied.

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the
Township of Pocono the day of . 2025,

ATTEST: Township of Pocono
Board of Commissioners

By: By:
Print Name: Jerrod Belvin Print Name: Richard Wielebinski
Title: Township Manager Title: President




N
4 IWs

March 19, 2025

- YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: DEFAZIO LOT JOINDER -5120 LAUREL LOOP ROAD
LOT COMBINATION PLAN REVIEW NO. 3
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1440, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R1100

Dear Commissioners:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our third review of the above referenced project. The
submitted information consists of the following items.

e March 19, 2025 email response from Jonathan Shupp, P.L.S., S.E.O. to our previous comment letter.
e Plan entitled “Lot Joinder of Lands of Charles Defazio™, prepared by Jonathan Shupp, P.L.S., S.E.O.,
dated January 30, 2025, revised March 5, 2025.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant is proposing to combine three (3) existing properties located on the southeasterly side of Laurel Loop
Road.

A. Existing Lot 42 (Parcel ID No. 12.11A.1.16), owned by the applicant, has an area of 0.6861 acres and is
located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District. It contains an existing gravel drive.

B. Existing Lot 43 (Parcel ID No. 12.11A.1.17), owned by the applicant, has an area of 0.6862 acres and is
located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District. It contains an existing house, driveway,
septic, and well.

C. Existing Lot 44 (Parcel ID No. 12.11A.1.18), owned by the applicant, has an area of 0.6189 acres and is
located within the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning District. It contains an existing gravel drive.

The minimum lot area required within the R-1; Low Density Residential Zoning District is two (2) acres. All three
lots are existing non-conformities as their lot areas are each less than two (2) acres. The proposed lot combination
will create a new lot having an area of 1.9912 acres which reduces the existing non-conformity with respect to lot
size. Additionally, the existing house on Lot 43 is in violation of the side yard setback. The proposal will eliminate
this non-conformity. No development is proposed.

Based upon our review of the above information and our previous review letter dated March 18, 2025, we offer the
following comments and/or recommendations for your consideration.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1. Previous Comment | satisfied.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



Defazio Lot Joinder — 5120 Laurel Loop
Lot Combination Plan Review #3

March 19, 2025

Page 2

4.\'% Pocono Township Board of Commissioners

2. In accordance with Section 390-28.A.(3), “the survey shall not have an error of closure greater than one in
10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report™. 4 boundary closure report was provided. Segment #7
of the closure does not match the plan. The discrepancy must be resolved. Additionally, the MCPC noted an
acreage discrepancy with the Assessment Records which also must be resolved. (Previous Comment 2) The
plan has been revised to match the closure report. The issue of the discrepancy with the Assessment Records
must be resolved with the County prior to recordation. (Previous Comment 2) The surveyor’s response states,
“The assessment records on the acreage comes from a plan dated 1960. The lots aren't even labeled with
acres on the plan. They would have just been assumed by the assessment office in 1960.” No further action
is required.

3. Previous Comment 3 satisfied.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

4.-6.  Previous Comuments satisfied.
All other previous engineering related comments have been satisfactorily addressed.

If you should have any questions, please call me.

\JZ

Jon \Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Townshyp Engineer

Sincerely,

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Jonathan Shupp, P.L.S., S.E.O. — Applicant’s Surveyor
Charles Defazio — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R 1 100\Correspondence\Review Letters\Defazio Lot Joinder Review No.3.docx



March 12, 2025

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 12, 2025 | 6:00 p.m.

The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners was held on March 12, 2025 and
was opened by Chair Richard Wielebinski at 6:00 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call: Ellen Gnandt, present; Natasha Leap-Vice President, present; Mike Velardi, present; Brian
Winot, present. Rich Wielebinski-President, present.

In Attendance: Leo DeVito-Township Solicitor; Jon Tressler-Engineer; James Wagner-Chief of Police;
Patrick Briegel-Public Works Director; Jennifer Gambino-Events Coordinator; Jerrod Belvin-Township
Manager, Lindsay Scerbo, SFM Consulting, Erica Tomas, Administrative Assistant.

Public Comment

Cheryl Parks (Resident) —. Concerned with a special exception application, missing site plan,
wetlands issues, unauthorized property changes, deed restrictions, drainage problems, and multiple
dogs on the neighboring property. Bought her property in 1987 and feels harassed by neighbor.

Charles Kepler (Resident) — Announced candidacy for Pocono Township Commissioner. Opposes
LERTA, arguing it favors big corporations over small businesses and suggests a more targeted
approach for historic buildings and local businesses. Proposed a community workshop.

B. Winot explained how nothing Mr. Kepler described constitutes a LERTA.

Vincent Trapasso (Resident) — Explained how a LERTA will assist local developers like himself to
continue to build and assist in keeping the taxes within the township down for everyone.

Josh Knapp (Resident) — Opposes blanket LERTA but sees value in a targeted approach. Warns it
could shift the tax burden. Cited the Johnson & Johnson warehouse as an example. B. Winot
corrected his information. Urged a more responsible review to earn his support.

Announcements

An executive session was held on March 3 for personnel.
The Board of Commissioners meeting scheduled for March 17" has now been moved to Tuesday, March

25 due to the importance and large number of hearings and to allow all commissioners to be in
attendance.

Consent Agenda

* Old business consisting of the minutes of February 18, 2025 regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

= Financial transactions through February 27, 2025 as presented, including ratification of general
fund expenditures, sewer operating expenditures and gross payroll, vouchers payable, sewer
operating expenditures, construction fund expenditures, capital reserve expenditures and
transfers in the amount of $354,302.31.(Summary Page of packet)

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the consent agenda. All in favor.
Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS —

Personnel — None

Travel/Training Authorizations - None



March 12, 2025

Commissioner Comments

Richard Wielebinski — President

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to donate the meeting room conference table &
chairs to Jackson Township once Pocono Township moves into the new location. All in favor. Motion
carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to authorize advertisement for the Learn Road
Roundabout Bids. All in favor. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap - Vice President
Ellen Gnandt - Commissioner

=  SBA Cell Tower — No updates.

* Solar Field — They are in compliance with everything.

= Kennel — No updates.

= E. Gnandt Questioned the purpose of a bus load of people from NJ to Ruby Lane, dropping off and
picking up. Zoning has sent out a letter to the owner for a response to use. Signage was discussed
once again regarding Ruby Lane. N. Leap asked P. Briegel to take a look at the existing road sign, no
action taken

* E. Gnandt asked that last minute changes moving forward be posted on the township Facebook page
and Savvy Citizen.

* E. Gnandt asked L. DeVito to elaborate on his findings regarding an opinion from the Ethics
Commission concerning commissioners and their involvement with developers in relation to the
LERTA. L. DeVito has drafted a letter for review by the board prior to mailing it out. E. Gnandt asked
if it would preclude discussions or can the board move forward.

Brian Winot — Commissioner

= B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to exclude a property from the LERTA. All in
favor. Motion carried.

= B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to exclude the property with the tax ID
12.11.1.3-5, the project known as The Ridge to be excluded from the LERTA District. All in favor.
Motion carried.

= B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to authorize and direct the Solicitor to research
and prepare an amendment to the LERTA Ordinance of this Township to exclude from, or minimize
the application of, the LERTA Ordinance to any warehouse, distribution, wind or solar projects, for
further consideration by the Board. Discussion: E. Gnandt questioned who would be preparing the
amendment, Pocono Township’s solicitor or the outside firm. L. DeVito explained the issue being, can
we selectively exclude a use that is permitted in a district with a blanket LERTA Ordinance. B. Winot
stated that every objection at the school board level has been about the warehouses. He suggested
excluding the overlay. L Devito pointed out that it does not address the wind and solar. Amended
Motion: B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to authorize and direct the Solicitor to
research and prepare an amendment to the LERTA Ordinance of this Township to exclude all uses
permitted in the Enterprise Warehouse Overlay District. All in favor. Motion carried.

= B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to partner with Susquehanna Accounting &
Consulting Services Inc, to perform long-term Police Cost Study. Discussion, E. Gnandt asked if they
specialize in Police studies. J. Belvin clarified. All in favor. Motion carried.

= B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to direct the Township Solicitor to research and
prepare a proposed amendment to the Township's Zoning Ordinance clarifying that solar farms and
wind arrays are not defined or requlated as “essential services.” Discussion: B. Winot spoke with the
head of the EPA, Lee Zeldin. The US Government is going to determine that they are not essential
services, they are secondary power sources, as they can never switch to either one of them. They
cannot be base load power. Further discussion was had with the board. All in favor. Motion carried.

Mike Velardi — Commissioner

Reports



March 12, 2025

Zoning Report -Lindsay Scerbo went over her report with the board.

Police Report — February report was sent out to the commissioners. The summary, 1024 calls for
service, 23 criminal arrests, 15 summary, non-traffic arrests, 27 traffic accidents investigated, & 374 traffic
contacts.

-All three drones have been received. All seven officers passed their part 107 FAA certification. Training
will start the week of March 24t through the 27'. Invites will go out to the board to observe the training
and operations.

Manager Report-Jerrod Belvin

County Hazard Mitigation — No major update, expecting a draft for review in June.

Update Green Light Go

LERTA Update- 6pm 3/31 workshop for LERTA at Township Office

NCC Update — Carpets are completed in the meeting room and chairs got delivered. Still on target to
move in at the end of May.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the purchase of a Canon TM-355
MFEP Z36 Plotter/Scanner in the amount of $9,495.00 This price reflects an $800 Rebate. All in
favor. Motion carried.

Civil Service — Resignation Letter was received from Pete Nish. R. Wielebinski stated that Jack Burns
verbally told him he would be resigning also. Nothing has been received in writing as of yet from Jack.
Grants Update — working on a small water and sewer grant for expansion.

PennDOT road study update — traffic counts and road studies will be conducted on the township
roads this year.

B. Winot asked about the PennDOT detour for Shine Hill Rd., the township will have to pay for detour
signs on local roads. The detour has been moved up to August.

B. Winot asked about the LSA Grants for Rimrock — Extension letters have been signed and sent out.
Wawa received a multi-modal grant for that intersection.

Public Works-Patric Briegel

Sewer Business Update — Generator service was performed on pump station five.

The heating system for the DPW garage has been completed.

MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions — Environmental work has restarted for the MCTI and Sullivan Trail
work.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to authorize the purchase of a PS#5 Flow
Meter & Bioxide Pump in the amount of $12,460.95. All in favor. Motion carried.

Road paving update — 16 roads identified for a maintenance application. Bid's hopefully going out
soon.

Bridge Inspections — We met with Jason Carver, Bridge inspector, updates forthcoming.

Fish Hill speed limit recommendation after review, has been determined to be 35 MPH.

Parks Update — Brian is off to a great start. MVP pickleball courts and tennis courts have opened up.
The ice rink at TLC has been removed for the season and the pickleball courts will open soon. Park
staff are due back next week to prepare for the April 15t season opening.

Events Report-Jennifer Gambino

Fishing derby registration will open soon.
Partnering with the Monroe County Children and youth for a Community Egg Hunt April 61, with
county wide police, fire, and EMS.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to waive the pavilion fee for IU20 (Nonprofit) for
5/16/25. All in favor. Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to waive the pavilion fee for Boy Scouts troop
80 for 8/9/25. All in favor. Motion carried.

Township Engineer Report-Jon Tresslar



March 12, 2025

* Sewer Business Update — Surveying MCTI and at the college.

* Learn Road safety enhancement project and roundabout survey work. Out for Bid.

* Discussion regarding addressing and center line for Moss Drive) on next meeting agenda.

* Fish Hill Rd. — The two 25 MPH areas are appropriate. The Middle section should be set at 35 MPH.

= Bridge Report — Three bridges, Stadden Rd., Lower Scott Run, and Cranberry Creek Road all have
scour issues and are on PennDOT's critical list, meaning they need to be addressed within the next
six months. We will move forward and get the necessary permits for maintenance and then probably
put them out for Bid on repairs.

* N. Leap asked if we have heard from Senator Brown'’s office of the DEP for Laurel Lake Dam.
Discussion was had regarding alternate plans should the dam be shut down.

Township Solicitor Report-Leo DeVito

= Sewer Business Update — no updates
=  General legal update —

Oral arguments 4/8 in Harrisburg at 9:30 for Sunset Hill Shooting Range.

Leo Mentioned engaging Edgar Siemens firm out of Harrisburg to advise concerning the LERTA
and assist its process through with the county and school board. An Engagement letter has been
received from them at a rate of $315/hr.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to hire Edgar Siemens, to be the Special
Council for the LERTA. All in favor. Motion carried.

= Update — Archer Lane - None

* Learn Road Easement Process — Inching forward.

= TASA Sidewalk Update — Easements — received the documents that PennDOT is looking for. We are
moving forward.

Public Comment

Vincent Trapasso (Resident) — Asked for an update on the Sullivan Trail sewer expansion. Hopefully
moving on soon. Some testing has been done. He would be happy to provide well tests and mentioned a
pumpstation area. He asked about the status of repairing the water issue on Mountain View Dr. and
offered his assistance.

Charles Keppler (Resident) — Questioned why the LERTA needs to be a new construction for the building
to qualify. He believes a workshop would be beneficial to address questions such as these. He stated that
a State College borough used a LERTA specifically to revitalize older historic buildings in their town.

Adjournment — R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to adjourn the meeting 7:40p.m.
All in favor. Motion carried.




March 25, 2025

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 25, 2025 | 6:00 p.m.

The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners was held on March 25, 2025 and
was opened by Chair Richard Wielebinski at 6:20 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call: Ellen Gnandt, present; Natasha Leap, present; Mike Velardi, present; Brian Winot, present.
Rich Wielebinski, present.

In Attendance: Leo DeVito-Township Solicitor; Jon Tressler- Engineer; James Wagner-Chief of Police;
Patrick Briegel-Public Works Director; Jerrod Belvin-Township Manager, Lindsay Scerbo-SFM Consulting,
Erica Tomas-Administrative Assistant, Shawn McGlynn-SFM Consulting, Robert Kidwell-Esquire.

Public Comment

Cheryl Parks (Resident) — Informed the Board that the kennel now has 12 dogs per their website.
Reiterated concerns regarding licensing and vaccinations. Expressed that the kennel negatively

impacts her property value. Also reported a group of masked teenagers walking toward the church-
owned property with two houses and two trailers.

Announcements

An executive session was held prior to the March 25, 2025 meeting to discuss personnel and litigation.

Hearings

Hearing #1

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi to open the hearing to amend the code of
Ordinances of Pocono Township, chapter 425, Vehicles & Traffic, Article I, Speed Limits, Section
425-1, establishing a maximum speed limit of Twenty-Five (25) miles per hour for motor vehicles
on Post Hill Road and Section 425-11, restricting truck traffic on Post Hill Road. All in favor.
Motion carried.

* Board Comments & Public Comments — E. Gnandt asked to clarify. L. DeVito stated the
hearing has been properly advertised.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve Ordinance No. 2025-04
amending the Code of Ordinances of Pocono Township, Chapter 425, Vehicles & Traffic,
Article |, Speed Limits, Section 425-1, establishing a maximum speed limit of Twenty-Five
(25) miles per hour for motor vehicles on Post Hill Road and Section 425-11, restricting truck
traffic on Post Hill Road. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #2

* R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to open the hearing to appeal the
township code enforcement officers notice of dangerous structure/order to demolish.

= Board Comments & Public Comments- E. Gnandt asked for clarity on the hearing. L. DeVito
explained the details of the dangerous structure description. Further discussion was had by
the board and legal representation on this matter. S. McGlynn confirmed that the building has
been secured from entry. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly advertised.

* R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to continue the hearing for 60 days until
May 19, 2025, the second Board of Commissioners meeting in May at 6:00 p.m. the appeal of
Township Code Enforcement's Notice of dangerous structure/ order to demolish, on subject
property known as Monroe County Tax Parcel I.D. No. 12.11A.1.93 located in a commercial
zoning district, violation of §382-4 of the Ordinance. All in favor. Motion carried.




March 25, 2025

Hearing #3

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 90, Airport Zoning adding additional provisions for nuisances. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments — to add the definitions, both public and private to the
township ordinances. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 90, Airport Zoning adding additional provisions for nuisance to the
Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #4

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 129, Burning, Open, adding additional provisions for nuisances. All in
favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. B. Winot made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski
to go on record that for each of the hearings 1 through 16, are only to add the definition to
each of the ordinances. All in favor. Motion carried. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been
properly advertised. Elizabeth Casciano asked for clarity regarding bon fires left unattended.
Cindy Greggor enquired about the days for burning, permits, and materials.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 129, Burning, Open, adding additional provisions for nuisance to the
Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #5

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 205 Floodplain Management adding additional provisions for nuisances.
All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments.- L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 205 Floodplain Management adding additional provisions for nuisance to
the Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #6

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 212 Furnaces, Outdoor; adding additional provisions for nuisances. All in
favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. N. Leap asked for clarification on what is classified as
an outdoor furnace. Dawn Eilber asked what would be considered a nuisance regarding an
outdoor furnace. Shawn McGlynn stated it would be items that are not permitted by the
manufacturer and cause foul odors. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 212 Furnaces, Outdoor adding additional provision for nuisance to the
Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.




March 25, 2025

Hearing #7

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 220 Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control: adding additional

provisions for nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 220 Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control adding additional
provisions for nuisance to the Ordinance and repealing all ordinance inconsistent therewith.
All in favor. Motion carried. B. Winot asked if this could be used in situations like stormwater
problems created by other neighbors. L. DeVito stated yes.

Hearing #8

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap. to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 230 Insurance Proceeds: Emergency Responses and Alarms; adding
additional provisions for nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap., to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance Chapter 230 Insurance Proceeds: Emergency Responses and Alarms adding
additional provision for nuisance to the Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent
therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #9

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter235 Junkyards and Junk Vehicles: adding additional provisions for
nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to close the hearing. All in favor.
Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance Chapter 235 Junkyards and Junk Vehicles adding additional provision for nuisance
to the Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion
carried.

Hearing #10

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 250 Maintenance of Properties: adding additional provisions for
nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to close the hearing. All in favor.
Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance Chapter 250 Maintenance of Properties adding additional provision for nuisance to
the Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.




March 25, 2025

Hearing #11

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 302 Transient Dwelling Use of Single-Family Dwellings: adding additional
provisions for nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. Elizabeth Casciano asked specifically what a nuisance
in this case would be. R. Wielebinski listed @ number of examples. L DeVito explained further
regarding the definition of a nuisance. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 302 Transient Dwelling Use of Single-Family Dwellings adding additional
provisions for nuisance to the Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith.
All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #12

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 333 Sewers, and Sewage Disposal; adding additional provisions for
nuisances. All in favor. Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. Elizabeth Casciano asked what would constitute a
nuisance in this ordinance. R. Wielebinski explained. B. Winot stated what a reasonable
person would consider a hazard. L. DeVito read the definition of a private nuisance. L. DeVito
stated the hearing has been properly advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 333 Sewer, and Sewage Disposal: adding additional provisions for
nuisance to the Ordinance and repealing all ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Hearing #13

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 356 Solid Waste: adding additional provisions for nuisances. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried. '

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 356 Solid Waste adding additional provisions for nuisance to the
Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #14

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 365 Stormwater Management; adding additional provisions for nuisances.
All in favor. Motion carried. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly advertised.

Board Comments & Public Comments.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to close the hearing. All in favor.
Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 365 Stormwater Management adding additional provisions for nuisance
to the Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion
carried.




March 25, 2025
Hearing #15

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 382 Structures, dangerous; adding additional provisions for nuisances. All
in favor. Motion carried.

* Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 382 Structures, dangerous adding additional provisions for nuisance to
the Ordinance and repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #16

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to open the hearing to amend
Ordinance, Chapter 404 Tires; adding additional provisions for nuisances. All in favor. Motion
carried.

= Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito stated the hearing has been properly
advertised.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to close the hearing. All in favor.
Motion carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to approve the amendment of
Ordinance, Chapter 404 Tires adding additional provisions for nuisance to the Ordinance and
repealing all Ordinances inconsistent therewith. All in favor. Motion carried.

Hearing #17

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by E. Gnandt, to open the hearing to consider a
waiver request from the Pocono Township Code of Ordinances Chapter 365 Stormwater
Management; § 365-10 Water quality and stream-bank erosion; subsection | Buffers involving
156 Doe Road, Bartonsville, PA Tax Parcel I.D. No. 12.2.2.12 in an R1 zoning district. All in
favor. Motion carried.

= Board Comments & Public Comments. L. DeVito has been informed that the party has
redesigned the proposal and now the waiver is not necessary. S. McGlynn explained further.
Discussion was had by the board.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to close the hearing. All in favor. Motion
carried.

= As the matter has been withdrawn, no action was taken by the board.

Resolutions

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve Resolution 2025-06
Granting Conditional Approval for the Route 611 Dual Hotel Subdivision plan. All in favor.
Motion carried.

= Motion to approve Resolution 2025-07 Granting Conditional Approval for Route 611 Dual
Hotel Land Development Plan. (Open Space Fee TBD) No Action Taken.
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the waiver of section 365-
10(1) Buffers, section 365.10 (1)8 streams (a,b,c); of the Route 611 Dual Hotel Subdivision
Plan. Roll call: N. Leap, no; E. Gnandt, no; R. Wielebinski, yes: B. Winot, ves: M. Velardi, yes
Motion carried.
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the waiver of section 365-
10(1) Buffers, Section 365.10(1)6 Wetlands (a,b,c). Roll Call: N. Leap, no: E. Gnandt, no: R.
Wielebinski, yes: B. Winot, yes; M. Velardi, yes. Motion carried.
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to approve the waiver of section 390-
55.F.(1)(a) & Table 390-55-1. Roll call: E. Gnandt, yes: N. Leap, yes: R. Wielebinski. yes: B.
Winot, yes; M. Velardi, yes. Motion carried.




March 25, 2025

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the waiver of section 390-
55.F(1)(a) & table 390-55-1. Roll call: E. Gnandt, yes: N. Leap, yes: R. Wielebinski. yes: B.
Winot, yes; M. Velardi, yes. Motion carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve Resolution 2025-08
Granting Conditional Approval Amending the Swiftwater Solar LDP Phase A. Roll call: N.
Leap, no; E. Gnandt, no; R. Wielebinski, yes, M. Velardi, yes, B. Winot, yes. Motion carried.

= Motion to approve Resolution 2025-09 in support of DCNR grant application for the
development of sensory streamside walkway at Glenwood Hall and TLC Park. No Action
Taken

= R. Wielebinski made a motion to approve Resolution 2025-10 Granting Conditional Approval
Amending the Swiftwater Solar LDP Phase D. Roll call: E. Gnandt, no: N. Leap. ves: R.
Wielebinski, yes: B. Winot, yes; M. Velardi, yes. Motion carried.

Consent Agenda

= Old business consisting of the minutes of March 12, 2025 regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

= Financial transactions through March 26, 2025 as presented, including ratification of expenditures in
the amount of $821,824.42 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer Operations, Gross
Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund, Transfers.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the consent agenda. All in favor. Motion
carried.

Commissioner Comments

Richard Wielebinski — President

* R. Wielebinski made Motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to award the Clean-up bid to Marki Rolloff
Container, Inc. in the amount of $27.70 per Cubic Yard for the 2025 Spring April 25% and 26th and
Fall September 26 and 27t Township Clean-up. All in favor. Motion carried.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve the reduction of the construction
escrow for the Spirit of Swiftwater Phase 2 in the amount of $245,051.37 based on T&M'’s letter dated
March 11, 2025. E. Gnandt questioned the backup information provided and a letter prior to the vote
that was in the packet. All in favor. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap — Vice President
Ellen Gnandt — Commissioner

SBA Cell Tower — No update

Solar Field — Still inspecting biweekly.

Kennel — No update

E. Gnandt made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to approve the purchase of a 2025 Ford Police
Interceptor from Koch 33 & Upfitting by P&D (Costars Vendor) in the amount of $102.595.15. B.
Winot asked that a UPS system be installed. The board discussed options going forward. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Brian Winot — Commissioner
Mike Velardi - Commissioner

Reports

Zoning Report ~Lindsay Scerbo went over her report with the board.



March 25, 2025

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to authorize SFM Consulting to conduct
inspections at 2914 Bartonsville Ave. All in favor. Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to authorize SFM Consulting to conduct
inspections at 268 Laurel Lake Road for potentially dangerous structures within the township. All in
favor. Motion carried. N. Leap Abstained from the vote.

Police Report —

Manager Report — Jerrod Belvin

Update Green Light Go — Set to become adaptive in three weeks. Pat, Jim, Mitch and Jerrod
attended trailing. Leeward finally paid for the power outage last week.

NCC Update — Moving forward, countertops going in and on schedule. N. Leap asked about the air
vents going to bid for cleaning. E. Gnandt asked about the signs for the 715 detours.

Defensive Driving — classes have all been completed between the fire company, administration,
public works, and police departments.

Insurance Update — Low insurance claims have resulted in better rates within the trust

Public Works - Patrick Briegel

Sewer Business Update — comprehensive force main flush has been completed.
MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions —

Current Public Works Projects- clean up from the winter, pothole patching.

Parks Update — water on at park,

Paving request from PennDOT for Paradise Townships paving of Sylvan Cascade.

Surveyor was out today for water and sewer connection. N. Leap asked regarding the painting of the
speed humps and if it is on the rotation. Pat is looking into other options for painting.

Events Report

Township Engineer Report

Sewer Business Update — wetlands have been flagged on Bartonsville Ave. and Sullivan Trail.

Learn Road safety enhancement project and roundabout survey work. — Bids due 4/7/25

TASA Project

TLC Walking Bridge moving forward.

Address Request — Parcel 12.12.1.22-5 — Center line, moss Drive and a possible new road name. R.
Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to name the road Gearhart Road. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Township Solicitor Report

Sewer Business Update —

General legal update — Pocono Places — Judge Zulick affirmed the ZHB'’s decision. L. DeVito
commended Zoning for doing a great job. (Shawn, Amber & Lindsay)

Update — Archer Lane -

Learn Road Easement Process —

TASA Sidewalk Update — Easements —

LERTA Update — conflict with LERTA Workshop date. R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M.
Velardi, to cancel the workshop scheduled for March 31t and to set the new date to April 7t at 5 p.m.
until 6 p.m. All in favor. Motion carried. (B. Winot abstained)

Legal update — Early April L. DeVito will be going for oral argument in the Sunset Hill Shooting Range
case.




March 25, 2025

= Public Comment

Charles Keppler (Resident) — Stated for the record that people have tried to dial in by phone to hear the
meeting tonight and were unable to, manager had responded & tested the call during the meeting.

Adjournment — R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by N. Leap, to adjourn the meeting 9:20p.m. All
in favor. Motion carried.




POCONO TOWNSHIP
Tuesday March 26, 2025

SUMMARY

Ratify

General Fund $ 12,555.58
Payroll $ 270,774.34
Sewer Operating $ 4,697.18
Sewer Construction $ -
Capital Reserve $ -
Bill List

TOTAL General Fund $ 251,352.27
TOTAL Sewer OPERATING Fund $ 183,242.45
TOTAL Sewer CONSTRUCTION Fund $ 2,003.00
TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund $ 97,199.60
Liquid Fuels

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 821,824.42
Fire Tax Disbursement $ 23,129.16
Notes:
Summary Page 1 of 6 3-26-25 bills list



3/21/2025

POCONO TOWNSHIP CHECK LISTING

Tuesday March 26, 2025

General Fund

Date TYPE Vendor Memo Amount
Payroll 03/07/2025 ACH PAYROLL ENDING 3/2/25 $ 126,940.13
03/21/2025 ACH PAYROLL ENDING 3/16/25 § 143,834.21
TOTAL PAYROLL $ 270,774.34
General Expenditures
Date Check  Vendor Memo Amount
03/03/2025 2270 Brodhead Creek Regional Authority TWP, Palice, TLC Water 124.89
03/03/2025 2271 PENTELEDATA TWP Internet 409.40
03/03/2025 2272 PENTELEDATA MVP Intemnet 126.13
03/03/2025 2273 PENTELEDATA Police Intemet 698.00
03/11/2025 2274 Blue Ridge Communications Police 4 Lines/TWP 6 Lines 416.18
03/11/2025 2275 PPL Electric Utilities Lights & Signal 139.01
03/12/2025 2276 District Court 43-3-03 12.16C.1.21; 12637403014666 Civil 2025 218.75
03/12/2025 2277 District Court 43-3-03 12.10.1.44; 12636200831573 Civil 2025 232.25
03/14/2025 2278 PPL Electric Utilities Utilities-TWP, Kennys Way, Park 9,970.22
03/19/2025 2279 District Court 43-3-03 12.3.1.28-17; 12638303148630 1305 Cerise Wa' 219.75
TOTAL General Fund Bills _$ 12,555.58
Sewer Operating Fund
Date Check  Vendor Memo Amount
03/03/2025 1292 BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORI" Pump Station 2, 3, 5 Water 110.50
03/03/2025 1293 PENTELEDATA Pump Stations Intemet 369.75
03/12/2025 1295 BLUE RIDGE COMMUNICATIONS Pump Station 1 & 2 Phone 132.38
03/14/2025 1296 PPL Electric Utilities* Pump Stations Electric 3,862.49
03/14/2025 1297 Verizon Sewer SCADA System 35.87
03/17/2025 1298 BLUE RIDGE COMMUNICATIONS Pump Station 5 Phaone 66.16
03/19/2025 1299 Verizon Wireless Sewer Modems 120.03
TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $ 4,697.18
Sewer Construction Fund
Date Check  Vendor Memo Amount
TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund s -
Capital Reserve Fund
Date Check  Vendor Memo Amount

Page 2of 6 3-26-25 bills list



3/21/2025

TOTAL General Fund
TOTAL Sewer Operating

TOTAL Sewer Construction
Total Capital Reserve

TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund

12,555.58

4,697.18 Authorized by:

Transferred by:

17,252.76

Page 3of 6

3-26-25 bills list



3/21/2025

General Fund
Date Check

POCONO TOWNSHIP CHECK LISTING

Tuesday March 26, 2025

Vendor

Amount
03/20/2025 2280 A & E Glass, Inc. Insulated Glass Replacement Unit 1ea for NCC 195.00
03/20/2025 2281  Ackerman, Earl 3/9 - 3/14/2025 Training 1,026.65
03/20/2025 2282  ADP, INC ADP Time & Attendance 1/31, 2/16 & 3/2/25 790.19
03/20/2025 2283  American Heritage Life Insurance Company 11167 673.16
03/20/2025 2284  ARGS Technology, LLC Feb 2025 Remote IT Services 4,956.50
03/20/2025 2285  Auto Parts of Tannersville, Inc. Vehicle parts 1,247.35
03/20/2025 2286  Axon Enterprise, Inc. Police Cartridges 15ea 568.65
03/20/2025 2287  B&H Photo-Video, Inc. ELMO Document Camera (Total for Cameras $4,346, $2,227 to be billed a/o 2/28/25) 6,725.88
03/20/2025 2288  Bartonsville Printing Northeast Site Banner 195.00
03/20/2025 2289  Bianchi Joe 2/17 - 2/21/25 SWAT Training Reimb. 216.80
03/20/2025 2290  Big Brown Fish Hatchery, Inc. Fish Supply for Fishing Derby 4/10/25 3,419.85
03/20/2025 2291  Brodhead Creek Regional Authority Kenny's Way & TWP Sewer 247.50
03/20/2025 2292  Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P. Legal 8,601.50
03/20/2025 2293  Cefali and Associates PC Jan 2025 Treasury Services 640.00
03/20/2025 2294  Cleveland Brothers Equip. Co. Cat Roller Supplies 205.35
03/20/2025 2295  Cooper Electric Heater for MVP 167.82
03/20/2025 2296  DES-CPR Feb 2025 Recycling 30.00
03/20/2025 2297  E.M.Kutz, Inc. Metering Air Bonnet 3ea for Truck 6 767.43
03/20/2025 2298  Eric A. Moses Co. Rags 101.75
03/20/2025 2299  Freedom Sports LLC 5.56 mm Reduced Backpressure w/Muzzle Device 520.00
03/20/2025 2300  GIANT FLOOR Area Rug, Sundries Coils, Tubes & Nozzles for NCC 6,537.26
03/20/2025 2301  Gotta Go Potties TLC Park Baseball Field Rentals 85.00
03/20/2025 2302  Grant Success Lab Mar 2025 Grant Services 3,300.00
03/20/2025 2303  HUNTER KEYSTONE PETERBILT 3/4" Hose Bead for Truck 10 58.67
03/20/2025 2304  lannazzo, Marc 3/3-7/2025 Training 460.13
03/20/2025 2305  J. P. Mascaro & Sons MVP Waste Removal 253.70
03/20/2025 2306  Jan-Pro of NEPA PW, TWP, Police, Heritage Ctr. Cleaning 1,723.97
03/20/2025 2307  Jim's Drywall Supplies, Inc. 4 x 8 x 5/8 2ea for NCC 35.00
03/20/2025 2308 JNK Hydrotest & Extinguisher Supply Co. Extinguisher Service 204.95
03/20/2025 2309  Kimball Midwest Various Supplies 174.59
03/20/2025 2310  Marki Rolloff Container, Inc. NCC Garbage Removal 543.79
03/20/2025 2311 Marshall Machinery, Inc. Park Equip Maint 262.75
03/20/2025 2312  McMaster-Carr MVP Urinal Repair 210.52
03/20/2025 2313 MetLife - Non Uni. Pen. Plan Pension 8,708.97
03/20/2025 2314  MetLife - Non Uni. Pen. Plan Pension 230.26
03/20/2025 2315 Miller, Larry 3/15/25 Uniform 149.98
03/20/2025 2316  Monroe County Conservation District 8/15/24 MVP Family Scavenger Hunt 75.00
03/20/2025 2317  MRM Workers' Compensation Pooled Trust Install 7 of 12 2025 16,534.28
03/20/2025 2318 Nationwide - 457 457 plan 4,977.24
03/20/2025 2319 Nationwide - 457 458 plan 4,962.41
03/20/2025 2320  NEPA Business Technologies LLC Phone Support TWP, Police 193.00
03/20/2025 2321  Night and Day Diesel Truck 6 Service 400.00

Approve

Page 4 of 6

3-26-25 bills list



3/21/2025

Sewer Operating

Sewer Construction
Fund

Approve

03/20/2025 2322  O'Brien's-Glose Moving & Storage NCC Move 627.35
03/20/2025 2323  PMHIC Health Ins 70,792.55
03/20/2025 2324  Pocono Record Advertising 436.14
03/20/2025 2325  Pocono Township 3462 Rt 715 Travel 2 Pocono Escrow 1,139.00
03/20/2025 2326  Portland Contractors, Inc. Pocono TWP Feb 2025 Monthly Fee 335.00
03/20/2025 2327  PowerDMS, Inc. 2025 PowerTime Sub 5/1/25 - 12/31/25 2,795.63
03/20/2025 2328  PPL Electric Utilities TLC Lighting 253.43
03/20/2025 2329  Rath, Eric Uniform Reimbursement 169.88
03/20/2025 2330  RecDesk LLC Dec 2024 - Dec 2025 Annual Sub 1,950.00
03/20/2025 2331  Reliable Sign and Striping Left & Rt Curve Symbol Signs 140.00
03/20/2025 2332  Sarcinello Planning & GIS Services Feb 2025 Manthly Fee 4,534.56
03/20/2025 2333  Scicutella, Michael 3/9 - 3/14/2025 Training Reimb 191.84
03/20/2025 2334  SFM Consulting LLC Feb 2025 Zoning & Building Services 44,286.95
03/20/2025 2335  Silvi Cement / Slag / Salt Salt, Bulk Rollup Untreated 90.41 tns 7,413.62
03/20/2025 2336  Sparkle Car Wash Feb 2025 Police Car Washes 13.16
03/20/2025 2337  Staples Copy Paper 212.45
03/20/2025 2338  Staples Office Supplies 128.54
03/20/2025 2339  State Workers Insurance Fund Install 3 of 10 2025 2,770.00
03/20/2025 2340  StopStick, LTD 2 9' Stop Stick Kits 1,045.00
03/20/2025 2341  T&M Associates Engineering 10,862.81
03/20/2025 2342 The Teneo Group KnowBe4 Training 2,432.00
03/20/2025 2343 Troy Mechanical, Inc. Repair/Replacement NCC Bathrooms 6,840.00
03/20/2025 2344  TRP Allentown Clutch Fan 985.26
03/20/2025 2345  Tulpehocken Mountain Spring Water Inc MVP Drinking Water 14.00
03/20/2025 2346  ULINE Office Desk/Hutch/Chair for NCC 1,787.41
03/20/2025 2347  UNIFIRST Corporation TWP Mats 82.12
03/20/2025 2348  Wilson Products Compressed Gas Co. Argon & Oxygen Cylinder Rentals 16.50
03/20/2025 2349 Witmer Public Safety Group Ammo 7.289.12
03/21/2025 2350  J. P. Mascaro & Sons TWP Waste Removal 430.10
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $251,352.27
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount
03/21/2025 1300  Aspen Pest Control Pump Station 1 & 5 Mice Service 110.00
03/21/2025 1301  BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORITY March 2025 O&M 112,047.92
03/21/2025 1302  BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORITY Bioxide - Evoqua Inv 906891340 7,162.62
03/21/2025 1303  BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORITY Sewer Mapping Mar 2025 1,500.00
03/21/2025 1304 BROUGHAL & DEVITO, L.L.P. Legal 544,50
03/21/2025 1305  EEMA O&M Services Group, Inc. Op & Maint Services Mar 2025 9,917.75
03/21/2025 1306  Henry's Generator Service Job 1060380025 Pump Station 5 Repairs 18,320.11
03/21/2025 1307  J P Mascaro & Sons Pump Station 5 Waste Removal 293.85
03/21/2025 1308  Pocono Township Feb 2025 Admin Serv & Overhead 14,753.25
03/21/2025 1309  SUBURBAN TESTING LABS Pocono TWP Monthly NPDES 627.00
03/21/2025 1310  T&M ASSOCIATES Engineering 17.965.45
$183,242.45
Date Check Vendor Memo Amount
Page 5 of 6 3-26-25 bills list



3/21/2025

Capital Reserve
Fund

Liquid Fuels

Fire Tax
Disbursement

General Fund

Sewer Operating

Sewer Construction Fund
Capital Reserve

Fire Tax Disbursement
Liquid Fuels

TOTAL TRANSFERS

Approve

03/21/2025 1013

T&M Associates

Bartonsville Ave Sewer line Extension 2,003.00

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund $2,003.00

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount
03/20/2025 1092  AXON ENTERPRISES Black X26P CEW, Handle Taser 2ea 2,456.50
03/20/2025 1093  Build All Contracting Co. Repair & Paint Bridge Rail on Scotrun Ave. 2,800.00
03/20/2025 1094  T&M Associates Engineering 16,735.40
03/20/2025 1095  Telco, Inc. Proj 2023 Monroe Co Green Light Go GRANT 75,207.70
TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund $97,199.60

Date Check Payee Memo Amount
$0.00

Date Check Payee Memo Amount
03/20/2025 1056 Pocono Township Volunteer Fire Co. Interim A Feb 2025 / PMT 1 2025 $ 23,129.16

TOTAL Fire Tax __$23,129.16

$ 251,352.27

$ 183,242.45

$ 2,003.00 Authorized by:
$97,199.60

$ 23,129.16

$ -

$ 556,926.48  Transferred by;

Page 6 of 6

3-26-25 bills list



POCONO TOWNSHIP
Monday April 7, 2025

SUMMARY

Ratify

General Fund $ 4,213.99
Payroll $ 138,866.37
Sewer Operating $ 2,525.56
Sewer Construction $ -
Capital Reserve $ -
Bill List

TOTAL General Fund $ 214,553.97
TOTAL Sewer OPERATING Fund $ 25,497.09
TOTAL Sewer CONSTRUCTION Fund $ -
TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund $ 41,243.00
Liquid Fuels

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 426,899.98
Fire Tax Disbursement $ 23,129.16

Notes:

Summary

Page 1 of 5

25-4-7 BILLS LIST



1S S118 £-¥-S¢

GJozo8ed

:Aq pazuoyiny  95°62s'c $

66'cle'y $

pung sn1asay |ejided TV.LOL

G20z ‘L idy Aepuoy

ONILSIT MO3HI dIHSNMOL ONOJOd

junowy LIVETT lopuap Noayon ajeq
- pun4 uonaniisuo) Iamss Tv.LOL
unowy owa Jlopuap FEED ) ajeq
95°625' pung BunesadQ Jsamag TvLOL
9L Egr'L sajjddng Jamod @ sI0)iuo Ajlenp Jiy liyejding ¥LEL 5202/10/%0
G.°69¢ jousslu -1 uonels duing V.LVQI13LNId €LEL GZOZ/LE/ED
£€°095 ¥ NOILVLS diNnd a3-13an ZLEL S202/STIE0
zeeel ¥3 € NOILVLS dANd SNOILVOINNWWOD 39ald ang LLEL S20Z/L2/E0
junowy owa lopuap ¥oayon ajeq
66'€lLC'Y s|ilg pung [e1sua9 TVLOL
15'660'L g8/ sa||ddng Jemod g SI0)UOW AjijenD Iy Jiye|ding 1S€2 5202/1L0/¥0
00°869 aur yewisyy3 1oy sondo Jeqi4 Vv.1va313aiNad 95€Z §202/1L0/¥0
£1°921 youssyu Bpig ebejusH Vv1va313iNad GGEZ S202/LE/E0
S8'9.5') oussiul AN ‘OON ‘dML VAN ZaERENRNEE] ¥SEC S20T/LE/ED
21609 doueinsu| _mEmEm_Qnsw 0Q adueInsuy| ajIn wmﬂ_._w_-_ ueduauwy ZSEC S20¢/9¢/E
£6Y sleN dML uopesodio) LSHIHINN £5€2 5202/L2/€0
S6'%S diysumo suopesunwwod abpry anig 1G€C 5202/12/€0
junowy owsp Jopusp NRED o} ajeq
_Lle'99s'sel § TI0O¥AVd TVLO0L
1£7998'8€EL SZ/0E/E ONIANT TI0MAVd HOV 5202/¥0/70
junowy Jopusp IdAL ajeq

BuneladQ Jomas TV1OL
pund |eisusas V101l

pun4 aAlasay [eyden

pun4 uol9INIJSUOD JIOMDS

pung BunesadQ 1omesg

salnjipuadx3 [elauasg)

l1odked

pund [elauag

seoz/e/v



1511 571718 £--S¢ G Jo g adeq

GG'6EL'9 $
:Aq pausjsuel]

- $ anl9say |ejde) [ejo
) $ uonaNIIsuU0Y Jamas TV.LOL

seoz/t/y



1S171S1118 L-v-ST

G jo v a8ed

§ Sd 104 spixoig @ sjuroden

71 seibojouyda ] Jayepn Bnboag

91€l §202/20/v0

09'60L'L

1S°0}) 1918 Sd ALI-HOHLNY TYNOID3Y Y3340 dvIHAOHd SLEL §202/c0/v0
junowy owaj\ 1opusp FEETTe) ajeq
L6'€5S'PLZ$  ANNA TVHINIO TVLOL

6¥'€9 sbey "ou| ‘sied-A 96€¢ 520¢/10/¥0
9€'620'8 aujjose "Ou] 's8dIAJeS [aNd PHOAM S6ET S202/L0/¥0
G8'EY SIeN dM L uopesodiod 1SHIHINN ¥6€C G202/L0/v0
00°096'L6 1no-ji4 woolyieg OON "ou] ‘[eslueyos|y Aol L €6€£C 5202/1L0/0
ECEEL SEeS G¢0¢ 994 0711 "™SIVYL ¢6€C S20¢/10/¥0
0o0'ove dn Hejs |euoseas B AYIUOWN YOS sge Busa | ueqingng L6€C S202/1L0/v0
6661 Jamolg |end gLIN 20IAI9S 10Jo| 9L}03]F Bingspnols 06€C S202/L0/v0
670t dg 198 YAQ XYL uolsioald ‘ou| ‘alempleH s,3[091S 68€¢C G202/1L0/v0
€2°2S6'L se||ddng snoliep "OU| "aJempleH s,2199)S L8ET S20¢/10/v0
c0°L6S saiddng snouep 'ou| ‘alempieH s,3]99)S 98€¢ S20¢/10/¥0
i WA7AA 9pIoIqlsH g 18zl|iued Alddng adeospue] supeig G8€C G202/L0/v0
617982 quiay wuojun @ quiisy Buluiel | uoyuesdg S3INVT ‘'LLOOS V¥8€C S20¢2/10/¥0
98l W61 BalY pY Y2810 Buipuipm N 9143123|3 Tdd €8€¢ §202/L0/V0
00029 aoueusjule|N AJYIUO 3 [IBM JAIN 108juIsIa "au| 'siojoeljuo) pueod ¢8€T S20¢/10/v0
00°00% Aqiaq Buwysiy Gz/zLly sor ‘AsjleN.0 L8€T S20Z/10/¥0
0086 poddng suoud 5z0z 1dy 071 saibojouyos | ssauisng YdIN 08€¢ S20¢/L0/v0
18'¥80'8 OON 4o} ainjiuing ainjiuing ssauisng [euoljeN 6.€¢ S20¢/L0/¥0
0.°618'c 2lemyos pno|D JeBeueWoapIA/Wa}SAS 0apIA Jed-u| g abeiojs elawe) Apog "9U| ‘SUONN|OS BIOIOOW  B8/EZ S202/LO/O
00°0e eBOA dAN vaInNviN ‘vINYIN LL€2 S202/10/¥0
009/} dnmyjoid abeqles "0u| 'Jauiejuo) Jjojjoy Bl 9.€¢ §202/10/¥0
¢LSSY'oL sal|ddng DON $z0Z 9o4 % uer S,9M07 S.€T S202/1L0/v0
00'0S6'L $90IAI8S O3S S20¢ ‘elN ® 9°4 "ou| ‘sleeg ‘W 'H v.€2 S202/1L0/v0
00°068 S|ejusy ed S3Ij0d 09 BlOO €€ S202/1L0/v0
€9'909'y OON 10} s9jI 1 Jaqqny d0071d LNVID C.L€T S202/L0/v0
€8y sa|ddng >ed onseld s,Alg LLET S202/L0/¥0
00°00S'L SW04 G0Z 1OV 8 SHodoY uole|ne ) [eUeNjoY [enuuy Jo doid g 994 UlWpY [ENUUY SZ0Z "ou| '19)so g J9)so4 0.4€£¢ S20c/L0o/v0
ov'LL 19)se|g ‘0D S8SOl Y dl3 69€¢C S20¢/L0/¥0
12'020'C aseq X149 055G epmiiieT |[ed ‘d"1 Bunedien jlea 89€¢ S202/10/¥0
vZeelL OON oy sajjddng oujos|g 1edoo) L9€T S202/1L0/¥0
00'000°Cy Jooy DON uofonysuo) | piing 99€¢ S20¢/1L0/v0
Ll 1B1eM dML Auoyiny [euoifiay 3ea10 peaypoig G9€T S2¢0C/L0/v0
G6'VS jsussul 0L suonealunwiwod abpry enjg ¥9€¢C S20¢/10/¥0
88'L6L quiisy wuojiun 90r Iyouelg €9€¢ S202/10/¥0
cc6le SJIAISS JJOIYsA 3dljod J3jus) IVIAIBS Oy iseg C¢9€T S202T/L0/v0
vo'62L'CL Sua7 Wooz pue Joypsfold dieys ‘au] ‘09pIA-0loUYd HBd L9ET S202/L0/¥0
69°9.L S3NddNS MoNd.L "ou| ‘gjiAsisuue | Jo SsUed ojny 09€¢C S202/L0/v0
96°L2€'€ JONVHNSNI 3417 'al1'als ‘00 FONVHNSNI 3417 A3 LINN NYOIHd3INY 6GE€C S202/1L0/v0
9G°6VE souelnsu| [ejuswalddng ovidv 8GEC G20¢/10/¥0
junowy oway 10puUap FEEDTEe) ajeq

G20z ‘. 1lidy Aepuopy
ONILSIT MIIHD dIHSNMOL ONODOd

anoiddy

Buneiadp lamesg

pund [eiauan

seoz/t/y



1811 $7118 £-¥-ST

SJo 5 aded

:Aq peusjsuell  zz'ezt vOE $
= $
91’6712 $

00°EvZ L7
:Aq pazuoyiny 8 $
60°L6v'ST $
16'€55'LZ $

9L'6zl'ez$ XelaldIvioOL

aL'eel'ec $ G20z | LINd / S20T 984 v wiisju| "0D 8.l 193JunjoA diysumo | ouoaod 9501 §20zc/0zg/e0
junowy owa\ aafed FEED ) ajeq
00°0$

junowy owa aakey FEEITE) ajeq
00°€bZ'L¥$ pung aasesay [epded TVIOL

00'8¥2'6 siajeaH doys @ N.LY MeN Joj Bulipn Jielsy| 0717 uojonysuo) sjpuiz 6601 S¢0¢/e0/v0
00'S61'6 J3uueag/Isno|d uoued 80O [e101 J8jyory 8601 S202/20/¥0
00°006'} VSV Joj juswases - dwod jsni| Asjsury IsniL As|sury 160l S§20¢/20/¥0
00°009'02 £1.0060d [BU8S S¢dd [8poN woolg jed 09 'dIND3 SY3IHLOY™Y ANVIIATTO 9601 S20¢2/20/¥0
junowy owa 10pUaA FEEITR) ajeq
00°0$ pun4 UCKONISUOY J3M3S TVLIOL
junowy oway JOpUdA FEETT) ajeq
60°L6¥'S2$
19°99¢ G20z 994 Sees Alyjuop 0711 "¥SIvyl 0cEl S20¢2/20/v0
00°229 S3AdN Alyiuopy SEV1 ONILS3L Nvadngns 6LEL §202/20/v0
GZ'E0E'Sl PESYIBAQ @ UIWPY JOMSS GZ0T e diysumo | ouoood 81EL §202/20/v0
00°086'L Bap Yasu| Jajeq lopQ uosied "au] 09 Alddng J8jex3g LLEL S20Z/20/v0

anoiddy

SYI4SNVYL TVIOL
sjand pinb1q
juawasingsiqg xe| alidg
aAlasay [eyde)

pung uoioNIsuo) Iamss
BunesadQ 1amag

pung |eJausn

juswasingsiq
xe] a4

sjand pinbr

pung
aAI9saYy |eyden

pung
UOIJONIISUOY) I9MBS

szoz/e/v



A3 N0
ANIMERMAN... &m 230

invoice Dates 03/457 25

PR o igprommanty OF Sl tos i Vyeduine Invoice Number: (on -5-29
_ _ Account Deseription: [ Estimate:
Pocf:no ‘WP oLD M.c.c ¢C.
BU';‘C) e = Confirmation:
| Invoice:
SERVICES DISCRIPTION AMOUNT

Frkrne Bl of Buwows

P()MEA’WMH WiTH CLEANER

Y500

pﬁwr WH  Ben Moo Corvonade fo Cecre
Greathable Ma ﬂ’hf(f WaTerR procfep

19 500"

Total dues

25, 000"

Piease make checks payable to: Michael Ammerman, | 5 Wagon Trail, East Stroudsburg, PA 18301

Tozwmes

l.TmbrP@mentAﬂimicsmpapﬁem
ten {10} days of receipe A 11/2% monthly service
charge s payable on 2 overdue balancesThe grant of
any ficense or right of copyright is conditioned on
receipz of full paymene. )

2 Estimates. |f ¢his form is used for an proposd, the
fees and @penses shown are minimum estimates
only. Final fees and expenses shalf be shawn when
invoice is rendered. Client's approval shall be
abtained for any increases in fees or expenses that
exceed the original esdmate by 5% or more.
3:Changes Client shall be responsible for maldng
MW&WWWC@RM
QWWHMMMW
stall be made for dranges required to conform to the
original assignment description. The Client shall offer
meCmmrdmﬁmoppnmmlqmmkemry

4.A8 material is guarsnteed to be as specified, 20 tasks
Wiﬂbeaccompﬁshedinmdumewiﬁld)em
2nd or spacifications for the worlk listed in the job dis-
cription, and all work shall be completed in a substan-
tal workman-like manner for the above sum.

5.Any alterations or deviations from the above specifi-
acaions invelving extra casts will be execined upon
receipt of written orders, and will become an e
charge over and above this form Al agreements wi
be contingent upon, strikes, accidents, or detays beyond
the control of Contractor. Owner will provide fire,
tornado, and other necessary insurance upon the
abave work.

6. Medifications. Modification of the agreement musz
bewﬁuen,meptdmd\einvoicennyindude,and
Client shall be chligated o pay, fees or expenses that
were orally authorized in order to progress prompdy
with wark.

T Artiration Any disputes in excess of § {maximum

mbrm!m:mﬂaﬁsingmdﬂgis .
Agreunaushaﬂbeabn’mdmhhﬁrgarbﬁraﬁon
before a mually agreed upon arbitrator pursiant
the rules of the American Arbitration Asseciazion.The
Arbimmr‘sawdslmllbeﬂtdmdiudgrmnnybe
entered upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof,
The Client shall pay o arbitration and court costs,
reasonable ateorney's fees, 2nd fegal interest on any
award or judgment in favor of the Contractor:
8.Acceptance of Terms The above terms incorporate
Artide 2 of the Uniform Commercial Code. i not
objected to within ten (10} days, these terms shali be
dasmed 2cceptable.




O’Brien’s Moving & Storage

Headquarters:
7066 Snowdrilt Road
Allentown, PA 18106

Phone: 800-424-3866

Fax: 610-391-0311

E-mail: info@obriens-moving.com
www.obriens-moving.com

Quote for:
Pocono Township

Provided by:
O’Brien’s Moving and Storage

Move Files and TAB Shelving
2 Truck, 2 Driver and 4 helpers
At $390 per hour for 9 hours including travel $3,510.00

Move remaining office items
3 Truck, 3 Driver and 9 helpers

At $749 per hour for 8 hours including travel $3,745.00

Materials

150 2.3 cu.ft. commercial moving box $495.00

Moving Labels $24.00

Fuel Surcharge $48.94
$7,823.94

* Allflooring protection and building protection is included in the pricing and will be applied
prior to movement at each location.

e This is an estimate charges will apply based on actual time, labor provided and equipment
needed to complete the project.

e O’Brien’s Moving will not disconnect any utility connections.

e Allgoods are released at .60 cents per pound per article.

e Time starts when movers arrive and ends when they are released, minus lunch break taken.

o All moves during normal business days and hours are subject to a 5 hour minimum.
Afterhours and weekend moves have a 6 hour minimum.

pectfully Submitted,

loshua Barnhart
Commercial Relocation Manager
O'Brien’s Moving and Storage

/ﬂlllED

An In(erstate Agem for Allied Van Lmes O’Brien’s Moving and Storage, Leesport, PA



Pocono Township 2025 Spring/Fall Clean-Up - Bids Received

Company Name Price per Cubic Yard Spring Total $ (700 cubic yds) Fall Total $ (400 cubic yds) Total Bid Bid Packet Complete
That’s Gotta Go LLC $28.00 $19,600.00 $11,200.00 $30,800.00 Y
G&S Container Service Inc. $29.25 $20,475.00 $11,700.00 $32,175.00 Y
Marki Rolloff Container, Inc. $27.70 $19,390.00 $11,080.00 $30,470.00 Y
Waste Management $48.39 $33,873.00 $19,356.00 $53,229.00 Y
J.P. Mascaro & Sons $42.00 $29,400.00 $16,800.00 $46,200.00 Y




'. YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

March 11, 2025

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: LANDS OF THE SPIRIT OF SWIFTWATER - PHASE I1
CONSTRUCTION ESCROW RELEASE NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1287, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0613

Dear Commissioners:

Based upon our review of this request and construction inspections to date, we recommend that the
Applicant be allowed to reduce their construction escrow by TWO HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE
THOUSAND FIFTY-ONE DOLLARS AND THIRTY-SEVEN CENTS ($245,051.37). A line-item
tabulation for this release is attached for your files. Please note, authorization of this release should not be
construed as Final Approval or Acceptance of the improvements installed to date.

If you have any questions regarding the attached and/or recommendation, please do not hesitate to call.

incerely,

Jon SJTresslar, P.E., P.L.S. \
Township Engineer

JST/meh
Enclosures

ee: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Leo DeVito, Esquire — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esquire, Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Salvatore J. Caiazzo, P.E., Hanover Engineering — Applicant’s Engineer
Anthony Maula — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E., T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E., T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0613\Construction\Escrow Release\Excrow Release No. 2\Escrow Release #2 Cover Letter.docx

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 I 610.625.2999 II 610.625.2969 m tandmassociates.com



Z 'oN asedjay

00°SEB'SE S 00°090'ETY $ 00°0TV'6Y $ 00°568'8YT S Al W3LIVLIOLENS
00000 S 1 00'000'Z S 1 00°000'Z S 1 00000y s|oooo0'z 4 v3 (siiempu3 e10L 6) siiempu3l 9 |
00'SE8'0T S €97 - S 0 - S 0 00'5€8'0C s | oo'sy s £9v Exl El cene
00'000'S H T s S 0 4 S 0 00'000'S $|ooono's S 1 v3 uiseg uonuaQg o1 dei) BaAuo)| 3
00'000'8 S 14 - S 0 v s 0 00°000'8 s | ooo00'8 S 1 v3 ujseg uonenyu) o1 desj WaALO)|
. s 0 00'009'EE H zr 00°008'91 S 9 00°009'€€ $|oooos'z ¢ a v3 (s19)u1 W adAL jer0L €1) (W adAg) soquil - D |
2 S 0 00009°6T S L 00°000°vL S s 00°009'61 $|ooooB'z S I3 v3 (DadAy) s 8 .
. S 0 00'098'¢S S zsor 00°019°91 s T0E 00°098'LS $ | oo'ss S 7501 )l (1e101 310£5'T) 30K 8T v |
S3ILMIDVL Y3LVMINYOLS Al
00'8Z6'8 S 05°LZY'6 $ 05L2T'T $ 0S'SSE'BT S ) W3l 1v1018ns
00'SLL'T s 0S8’ 05Tt S SBYT 05422'T B S8vL 05°200°S s|ost S SEE'E 1l yaeq pue dreaexg qun)| 3
00080'1 s vt - s 0 - s o ovosot  s|loose | w | o | - llem Suierwy| g
0 0 0 . s|ooosz'y  $ 0 v Buiqgruis| D I
00°'S0L S SET 00'00Z'T H oov - S 0 00'S06'T S| ooE S SE9 Ad (1ev0L AD SEI'V I US| 8 t
00'89€E'Y S 95K'1 00°000'9 N 0002 2 H 0 00'B9E0Y s|oo€ B 95K'E A (1e30L AJ 9SY'9T) N2 dUS| v |
NHOMHLYY3 n
00'006'S $ s $ - 5 00'006'S S 11 W3LI 1VL018NS
00'000'7 S T , S 0 - S 0 00'000'Z $ 00000 S 1 51 SdNIg |03u0) SRI uIeIuIe | .
* S 0 c S 0 2 H 0 . $ loo'ooo’oT  $ 0 v3 sdespuawipas|  y t
5 S 0 - s 0 - S 0 . $ | 00'0s S 0 41 TLwiag fojems| 1 .
00°009 S T ’ S 0 : S 0 00009 S |oo009 S T 51 feaowdy dwe| |
00'008°T 5 81 - S 0 - S 0 00°008'T $ {0000t S 81 v3 (uon2a1014 1)U OZ JO [RI0L) UONIDI0IG 1| H t
- S 0 - S 0 - S (4] - $ joo'ost S 0 v3 oyl o l
i S 0 # S 0 3 S 0 s|ooooot 0 v paas pue yyniy Aiesodwag | 4 |
- $ 0 . s 0 - S 0 - s | o000t H 0 v3 sy vosdy desdjy) 3 |
00°005'T S € - S 0 & S 0 00°00S'T $ | oo'00s N € va S 9 jojeiot) ujseg Juyins| @ |
S 0 S 0 - S 0 ' S| oos H 0 N A20§ J914 3500W0) vz| D i
S 0 = S 0 - $ 0 : $|oov $ 0 f sodwoe) ,z1| 8 |
S 0 S 0 3 $ 0 s|oowoos't S 0 v3 14 05T 2ueu3 uodINISU) Y208| v |
S10Y¥1NOD IN3WIQ3S '8 NOISOY3 L}
00°000°ET S 00°005'v $ - S 00'00S°LY $ 1 W3L11V1018NS|
00°000'6 S 44 00'000'€ S v » S 0 00'000°ZT $ joo'ose S 91 Yiuop 134 (syiuow |e101 g1) 2a15dwnp pue Aseyues| 3 i
00°005'T S 0 0000S'T S o > $ 0 00°000'€ s [oo000'sT  $ zo v3 Asaning/inoAer| @ i
00'005'T S T - S 0 - S 0 000052 S |00'000'S S S0 v3 uonezqowag/uonezigon| v |
SNOILIONOD TVY3N3IO |
1502 ALILNVND 150) ALILNYND 1502 ALILNYND 150 1V10L 1503 LINN
MOYIS3 ONINIVINIY 31VQ 01 a3SVINIY 3SVI3Y INIWHND ANNOWY MO¥IS3 IVNIDIYO ALUNYAD 4INA NOLLdNIS30: WALl N
sz/o1/€0 31va 1S0 A8 @3INIIHD ‘ ‘
5Z/01/E0 31va HIW ‘A9 3NOQ ¢onNotanddY = o

€T190¥-020d

©'ON 80( S3LVIDOSSV WL

Vd ‘ALNNOJ JOUNOW ‘dIHSNMOL ONOJOd
113SVHd - Y3LVMILIIMS 30 LItIdS 3HL 40 SONVT

N




Z'ON 3seajoy

00'005'TS S - S = S 00'00S'TS $ XI W3l v1018ns
00°005'TS B 9t E S 0 = B 0 00°005'TS s|sestze S 9t v3 uoHEPUNOY puUE 3|0d/M DIMIXY jBuUIS| v
ONILHOIN
00'000°CZ S = S . $ 00°000°¢Z $ 1A W3Liviolens
00'000°S s T E B 0 - S 0 00'000'S $|oo'o00's  $ 1 9 YaINW pue paas wauewsdd| D .
00002 S [44 - S 0 - S 0 00'00L°L s | 00'0SE S [44 v3 saaiL uaaidion3| @ .
00'00€°VT S (44 = S 0 : S 0 00'00E'VT $ | 00'059 $ 44 v3 sodiLopeys| v .
ONIdVISANYT Hnn
00'v£5'00T $ 00°056'6T S 00°056'61 $ 00°bZ5 02T S 1A W3L1Tv1018NS
00'000°ZT $ T - S 0 . S 0 00'000'2T s | o000zt 1 s1 23udy/m peg srsdwng| 3
00°009'E N € . S 0 8 S 0 00°009'€ s o000zt S £ v3 sdwesvav| @ .
00'688'VE S 314 - S 0 . $ 0 00°688'VE $ | oo'sET S 15T AS ylemapis| D wsoe
00'V6E'T S 44 - S 0 ® S 0 00'V6E'T s | ootz S vt 1l qn) passuidag) @ .
00°169'LY S we'e 00'056'61 S 0s6 00'0S6'6T S 056 00'1v9'L9 s |oo1e S e N Q| v oo
31IYINOD 3LIS 1Y
00'8LL'6Z H 00'529'Z8 $ 00°00¥"E $ 00°EOV'ZTT S IA W31l V101805
00'00S°Z S 1 * S 0 * S 0 00°005'T 5 | 00'005'T S 1 s1 Ajquiassy INOURID/AINEA JDYD [N X .
00°005't. H 1 : S 0 - S 0 00°00S'L s|oooos't $ T v3 W INEANIY Enaf 1 .
00°000'S S 1 . S 0 $ 0 00°000'S s |oo000's S 4 s1 1aueg [021U0D/SHIOM I1133|3 pUe VQVIS| | .
00'8LL'Y S T S 0 % S 0 00'8LL'Y s |ooseL'y S 1 v3 JNaW Jomas Aenues| 4 .
00'005'T S [ 00°00S S T 00'00S $ 4 00°000°E s | oo'00S H 9 v3 uopepunoy duipjing ydnosyi as03| o
00°00S'L B T - S 0 % S 0 00°005°¢ s |oooos't S 1 v3 dunsay| 4
= S 0 00°000'€ S 9 00°00S S I 00°000°€ S | 00°00S S 9 va IAM 9%, 9%,.9 3
5 S 0 00°00v'8 S L 00002 S 4 00'00v'8 $ | oo'o0z't S L v3 sdesj pue sinoued) JAd| G ves
$ 0 00°005'2Z S 3 - S 0 000052 s |oooos't S € v3 ajoyuenw| >
s $ 0 00°00Z'T $ s - S 0 00'002°1 s|ooooz't S 1 v3 Jejjo) doas-nuy vxy| 8
. $ 0 00°SZ0'LY S 129 = S 0 00'S20°LY s | oo'se S tz9 1l JAd.9| v
HIM3S AYVLINYS In
. S 00'8LLES $ 00'8LL'ER $ 00'8LL'€8 S AW3LlIvL0L8NS
z S 0 00'00S S 1 00°005 S 1 00005 s | 00008 S 1 v3 291,9%,9%.8] 1
- s 0 00ovL'L S £ 000vL't S 13 00'0vL'L s |oo08s'z S 3 v3i EUL/W:] ]
- S 0 00'8E6'L S Lyt 00'8E6°L $ Wi 00'8E6'L s |oovs S Lt 1l zsssepdrauy|
: 5 0 000v6'vT S OEV 00°0V6've H OEV 00'0¥6'vT s | ooss S 0tV El gsssepdra.g] |
. S 0 00°09T°L S 4 00°09L' $ z 00°091°¢ s|oo08sE  $ [4 va swepAr|  H
: S (] 000SL't S L 00'0SL°T S L 000SL'T S | 00'0SZ S L v3 sy20]g Jopuy/sya0ig syl o
: S 0 00'005 H ¢ 00005 S I 00005 $ | 00°00s $ ¢ v3a 29, ,9x.8%.8] 4
= S 0 00°005 S 4 00005 S z 00005 $ | 00’05z S z v puag.v| 3
g $ 0 00082 S 1 00'08Z S 1 00082 s | coo8z S 1 v3 puag 9| aq
. H 0 0008Z't s v 000821 S v 00'082°1 s | oo'oze S 4 v3 puag 8| >
8 S 0 00°05S'T S 4 00055t S T 00055t s|oo0sst 1 v3 aneay| 8
: S 0 00'0¥9'6Z S asy 00'049°6Z s 9sp 00'0¥9'6Z $ | 00's9 S 95y 1] zssse 'dIa.8| v
INNYILYM A
1502 ALLINVND 1503 ALILNYND 150D ALIINVND 1503 W10L 150D LINN
MOUI53 ONINIVINIY 310 0L 03SVINIY 3SVIIIY INIHYND INNOWY MOYIS3 TYNIDINO AuRvAD 4N NoUdiias3aiivall N




syuawaaosdwi Sujuiewas ay) jo %01 S! Py adeuietas ‘apod Buiuueld sanyedRIuN Y143 |

Z 'ON 95233y

8v'8EVZEI S (39VNIVL3Y ONIGNIINI) ALIYNI3IS IVIONVYNIJ ONINIVWIY
LETSO'SYT  $ 35v3134 HO4 AIANIWWO0I3Y INNOWY
o00vs'v6 S d35¥3134 A1SNOIAIYd LNNOWY
SS'EVT'E9 S ({%0T1) 3IDOVYNIVLIY
8V'BEV'TE9 S JOVNIVLIY ONIGNTINI ONINIVIANIY HHOM 40 3NTVA TVLOL
€rseg'zor S 31vQ 0L G31DNYLSNOD ¥HYOM 40 INTVA TVLOL
OL'ELT'SED'T S ALIYNI3S TVIDONVNIJ TYNIDIHNO TV.LOL
20Z/02/8 40 se pa1d|dwo) Ajjented Jo Ajjng swaj) i
paisnipy Aynuenp pue 1503 1un saan
paisnlpy Ayquenp .
paisnipy 1500 1un .
pappy way| aur .
8V'8EL'TEI S €T'SEB'TOY S 86'€L0'SZZ $ OL'ELT'SED'T § ALIYNI3S TYIDONVNI4 G3¥IND3Y 1V.LOL
EELEY'LT $ 8S'YISLT  $ €8's8L6  $ 06'TTO'SY  § (%S) NOILVYHLSINIWAY ANV NOILIIdSNI
S9'¥66'vS S ST'620'SE  $ S9'TLS6T  $ 08'€2006 S (%0T) ADNIONILNOD
05'9v6'6vS S 0S'T620SE $ 0S'9TL'S6T $ 00°8£2'006 S AX-1 SIN3LI 3LIS vVL018NS
00°005°85 S . S - s 00°005'85 $ 1X W31l v1048NS|
00°005'8E S 1 = S 0 = S 0 00'00S'8E 5 | oo0os'se S T Bl ing 01 undunly sUOHEIUNWWIO] PUE I UeW| 8
00'000°0Z S T ¢ S 0 s S 0 00°000°0Z s | ooooo'oz S 1 S1 suopadsu) v
SNO3INVTIIISIN X
0S'IE6'BTIT S 00°IS6'9E S 00°156'9€ S 05'288'SST S X W3Ll11v1018NS|
0S'ZI9'TE S ST’y 05'29Z'21 S SE9T 05'Z92'TT S SEIT 00°SL8'EV S| o0s¢L S 058'S AS aseqqns Iuois vz 9 H
0S'9v9'€9 S S’y 05'889'vT s SE9T 05°889'¢vT S SEIT 00'SEE'8R s |orsy S 058'S AS 251n0) Japujg VWH anedddns ,z/1 2 5
00'S62'vL S 058'S - S 0 = S 0 00'S62've sjlocet S 0s8'S AS asino) Buuram VAIH anedsadng . z/1 T E]
00°00€ S 14 s S 0 £ S 0 00'00E S| oost S v v3 sdoys |2aym 3 .
00°'000'€ $ T . S 0 - S 0 00°000'€ s|oooooe T 51 sBupye wawaned| @
0S'ZVeE'ST S 0ET'E - S 0 N S 0 0S'¢YE'ST B ETALS S 0£Z'E 45 pudoan ssay Auadiaw3 2 .
00'09Z'82 S 879 : S 0 - S 0 00'092'8Z S | oo'sy S 829 Ell |1esoping ] .
00'5LY'T S 14 - S 0 - S 0 00'5LYT s | 00's9t S St v3 adeudis| v sees
3IDYNDIS ANY 'ONIdIYLS ‘ONIAVd 3LIS X
1500 ALIINYND 1500 ALIINVND 1502 ALILNVND 1502 1vi0L 150D LINN
MOYIS3 ONINIVWIY 31va 01 a3sv313y 3SvV313H INIHHND INNOWY MOYIS53 TVNIDINO ALUNVND 4NN NowLdINas30 Wall N




€40 T 98ed

<oV Aow

- X

<o V0 WwwywIT

!
‘oN

00'826°8 S 00°002'sL $ 0s'L22'c $ 05°'SSE'98 $ jdomyueg |ejol qns
00°SLL'T $ 0s8T - $0 0S°L22'C  $ s8¢l 05°200°S S 05T S 47 SE€€ II'p2eq pue 31eAedx3 qn)
00'080'T 74 - $0 - $0 00'080°T S 00'SY S 412 llem Suiulelay
s $0 0000041 $ v - $o0 00°'000°LT $ ooosty $ Y 8uigqnug
00'S0L $ SET 00°00C'€ET $ 00ty = $0 00'S06'€T S 00°€ S AD SE9Y 114 238
00'89€'y $ 9SvT 00°000'S¥ $ 000ST = S0 00'89€'6Y S 00'E S AD 95v9T N2 3§
Niomyues
150D Ajuenp 150D Ayuenp 150D Amuenp |elol way| 3Jl4d Hun nun Ayyuenp way|
00°006'S S 00°ZTL'8Y $ z S 00°2T9vS $ 1043u0) UoiIN|jod JUAWIP3S pue uoisol3 |e30l gns
00'000C ST - S0 - S 00°000'Z $ 00000 $ S1T $|0J3u0) $83 UlejUle|N
= $0 000000C $ ¢ 8 S 00°000°0C $ 00°0000T $ vaze sdeJ] Juswipas
- $o0 00'0SL'TT § SST - S 00°0S.°CT $ 0005 S 41 §5¢ T1 wisg/ajems
00°009 ST = $0 - S 00°009 $ 00009 $ 11 lenowal dNg
00°008'T $ 8T 00'002 sz E S 000002 $ o0000T $ v3 0z uo|33330.44 33|u|
- $0 00°052 ST - S 00°052 $ 000sZ S vit 19314 o0y
= S0 00008 $ € - $ 00'008'% $ 00009'T $ ol paas pue yojnw Atesodwa)
H ] 00°00Z ST & S 00°00L $ o0000L $ Vit S-y uoidy desdry
00'00S'T S € 0000ST $ € - $ 00°000°€ $ 00005 $ vig uiseg ulns
# $0 00'v¥8's $ vL6 - S 00'v¥8‘S $ 009 S 41146 A0S IS 7T
- $0 00'89T 44 C S 00'89T S 00'% S Eilad 3205115, 2T
- $ 0 00005 $ T = $ 00'005'C $ 0000SC $ V31 14 0ST 32UELIUS UOIINIISUO) FI0Y
|043U0) UoIIN||Od JUBWIP3S pUE uoIsoz
150D Amuenp 150D Anuenp 150D Anuenp |ej0L Wway| 3d31d 3un nun Ayzuenp way|
00'000°ET  $ 0000502 $ - S 00°00SEE $ sjuawalinbal [elauag/uoiezijiqoN |e3oL-gns
00°000'6 st 0000SY $ 9 = S 00°00S‘ET $ 000sL ¢ YIuoN Jad 8T Ja3sdwnp pue Aejiues
00°00S'T S T0 00'00S‘€ET $ 60 - S 00°000'ST $ 00°000ST $ vit Aanins/inoAey
00°005C $ 50 00005 $ S0 s S 00'000°S $ 00°000'S $ vit sjuawalinbal |esauan/uoliezljiqopy
sjuawalinbay esauan/uonezijiqo
150D Aynuenp 150D Anuenp 150D Ajuenp |elol way| 3dl4d Hun Hun Amuenp way|

Mo0.2s3 ul Sujuieway pasea|as Ajsnoinaid asea|ay juaiin) junowy mousas3i [euidug §202/52/20 ‘c# 15anbay ases|ay

¥202/7Z/0T :z# 1sanbay aseajay

¥20Z/9T/8 :T# 1sanbay asea|sy

3d ‘ozzele) aJolen|es :Ag paledald

Vd ‘Ayuno) aosuop ‘diysumo] ouodod

|1 95BYd - Sjuawpedy J191emMyIMS Jo Juids sy
sjuawanosdw) palinbay 10j ajewnys3 350)

Buriesuibuy
Janouep

H



€40z a8ed

00'8LL°6C $ 00'SZZ'6L $ 00°00v'E  $ 00°€0V‘ZTT $ Jamas Asejues |ejol gns
00°005°C [ ] S E S 00°005'C $ 00005C $ vil Alquiassy anjeA ¥23y) [eng
00005, ST - S - S 00°00S'L $ 0000SL $ Vit Jaquieyd aAjeA }23y) |eng
00°000°S ST - S = S 00°000°S $ 00000 $ Vit [aued [0J3U0D JIIBN MO| Jamas
00'8LL'Y ST B S 2 S 00'8LL'Y $ 00'8LL'Y S Vit 1913\ MO|4 Jamas
00°00SC $ s - $ 00°00S ST 00°000'€ $ 0000S vig uonepunoy 3ulp|ing Yyanoiyy a10)
00°00S°L ST - S - S 00°00S°L $ 0000S.L $ Vit SunsaL
4 S0 0000SC $ S 00'00S ST 00°000°E $ 0000S $ vig JAM ,,9%,9X,9
- $0 000009 $ S 00'00¥'c $ ¢ 00°00%'8 $ 00002T $ viL sded| pue synouea|d DAd
- $ 0 0000S5'C¢ $ € - S 00'005'2¢ $ 0000SZ $ ViE 3joyuey
4 $0 00002T $ T . $ 00°00Z'T $ 0000C'T $ Vit Jejj0) daas-nuy X,

“ $ 0 00'520Ly $ L29 - S 00°'520°LY $ 00'SL S 41 /29 JAdu9
1amas Aiejjues

350D Ayjyuenp 150D Ayjauenp 150D Amuenp |ejol way ?dud Hun wn  Awuenp way|

< S z $ 00'8LL'E8 $ 00°'8LL'E8 $ aujpaieM [e30L qns

- $0 e S 00°00S ST 00°00S $ 0000S $ Vit 931 ,9%,8%,8

- $0 - S ooovL'L $ € 00°0vL'L $ 00085'C $ vieE aneA 9

- $0 - S 00'8€6°'L S LYT 00°8€6'L $ 00'vS S 47 LpT 7555eD°d'I'd ¥

- $0 2 $ 00'0v6'¥C $ OtV 00°0¥6'vT $ 008§ S 41 0Eb 255se2°d''d .9
- S0 - S 0009T°L S T 00°09T'L $ 00085t $ viz sjuelpAy
- $0 - S 000SL'T $ L 00'0SL'T $ 000s¢ S vi L $}20]g Joydy/sya0jg IsniyL

= $0 2 S 00°00S ST 00°00S $ 00005 $ Vit 99 ,9X,8X,8

- $0 - S 00°00S 34 00°00S $ 000s¢ S vie puag v
= $0 = $ 00082 ST 00'082 $ 0008t $ Vit pusg 9
= S0 = S 00082T $ v 0008Z'T $ 000z S viy puag 8
- s 0 - S 000SST $ T 00°0SS'T $ 000SS'T $ Vit SA_AY
- $ 0 - S 00'0v9'62 $ 9S¥ 00°0v9'6C S 00'S9 $ 41 95p 255seD°d’'d .8
auljalem

350D Amuenp 150D Aynuenp 150D Anuenp |ejol way| g Mun nun Amuenp way|

00'SEB'SE S 00°0VL'TTIT $ 000199 $ 00'S8T'V6T S Saj3i|1oe4 Ja1emwI0)s [e301 gnsS
00°000' ST 00000%T S L 00000 S T 00°000'8T $ 00000C $ vil6 sllempu3
00'S€8°0C  § €9¥ - S - $0 00'SE8'0C $ 00'Sy $ 41 €9v a2ua (ley pue 3so0d
00'000'S ST = S - $ 0 00°000'S $ 00000's $ Vit uiseg uoi3ualaq o3 deJ| 1aAU0)
000008 ST - S - $0 00°000'8 $ 000008 $ Vit uiseg uotjesyyu| 03 des) UaAuo)
- $0 00'009°6T $ L 00'0089T S 9 00°00%'9€ $ 00008C $ vi €l (W 2dAL) s3a)u;
- s o0 oo'o0v'8  $ € 00°00Z°TT $ ¥ 00°009'6T $ 00008C $ L (0 2dAL) si9)u;
® S0 00°0vL'69 $ 89TT 00°0T9'9T $ 2OE 00°0S€°98 $ 00'SS S 41 04ST 3daH .87
sapl|oey J121emuliols

150D Amuenp 150) Auenp 150D Ayyuenp Jelo) way| ld Hun wn  Auenp way|

<o VO wwOIT

- = X d

<o VUO0OWwwwT

<o OO0 ww O

Al



€40 € aded

00°898°0TL S (28eureyay Suipnjou|) paundas Sululeway Junowy

00'TEL'E6T $ (S202/S2/7) €4 @5e3]9Y 104 paisanbal Junowy

00°801°62S S 31eQ 01 pa3a|dwo) YJOAA JO JUNOWY [B3OL

00°LLE'SEE $ pases|ay A|SNOIN3.1d Y10/ JO JUNOWY |30
00'9L6'6EC'T S Ajunaas [epueuly pasinbay (230
00°ZT6'ES $ (%5) uonessiulwpy pue uondadsu|
00'79098TT $ 150D Juswanoidwi| %0TT
00'289°06% $ 00°LLE'SEE $ 00'TEL'EGT § |e3ol  00°0v2'8L0T $ 350D juawanosdui) [B30L
000000z S 3 S z $ 00°005'8S $ snoaue||aIsi|Al [e30L qns
0000S8€ S T D S = S 00'005'8€ $ 00'00S8E $ S1t Sujyaual] suoiEdIUNWIO) pUe dL1IB|F Ule|y
0000002 $ T - $ - S 00°00002 $ 00°000'0T $ S1T suoizaadsuj
snoaue||a3sinN
150D Awnuenp 150D Auenp 150D Anuenp [eloL W3y ddld HuUN wn  Apuenp way
00°£91°86T S d $ 0S'STLLS $ 0528855 S Juawaned |e3ol qns
0SCI9TE  § STTv = S 057922t $ SE9T 00'S.8'EY S 0SL S AS 0585 as1no) aseq 21eda133y vz ,9
0S'9¥9'€9  $ SiTv - S 05'889'vZ $ SEIT 00'GEE'88 $ 0TSt $ AS 0S8S 954n03 J3pulq WIN 6T ,S'C
0S'0ES'ES  $ STev - S 0S'v9L°0T $ SE9T 00'S62'vL $ oLet $ AS 0585 851n0) Bulieap INING'6 ,S'T
00°00€ S v 2 S 2 S 00°00€ $ 00'SL S vivy sdois [3aym
00°000°€ s T - S - S 00°000°€ $ 00000t $ 1T sSupIe|A JuaWwaned
0S'ZVE'ST  $ Of€T'E - S - S 0S'ZYE'ST TA S 1S 0€zE p1u30a9 ssa22y Asuadiawy
0009787 $ 879 = $ - $ 00°092'8¢ $ 00°SYy S 41 829 |leaping
00'SLb'T $ ST - $ - S 00'SLb'T $ 00S9T  $ v3 ST ageudis
a8eudis .mr___n_:m ‘Juawaned
350D >u_u:m_._c 350D >u_u:m:~u 350D >u_u:m:,O |ejo] wsy| @3lid 3un nun >u_u:m3ﬂv waj|
00°00S‘TS $ 0091 SRS S $ - S - $ 00'00S'TS $ juawaned (€301 qns
00'00S'TS S 9T - S - S 00'00S'TS S SL'8TT'E S v3 9T Uol1epUNO pUE 3|0d /M 3INIXI4 3|3UlS
Sunysn
000002 $ 00'St S 5 $ S < S & $ 00'000°LZ $ juawaned |e1o] qns
00°000'S ST = $ - S 00'000°S $ 00000'S $ 1T Y2|NIAl puUB P33s JUBUBULIRd
00'00LL 44 - S - S 0000L'L $ o000 $ V3 e $924] U33.819A3
00'00EVT  $ T2 - S = S 00'00€'vT $ 000s9 $ v3 22 5321 apeys
Suidesspue ays
150D Amjuenp 150D Ayjuenp 150D Amuenp B30 Way| 3dld un nun Anuenp way|
00'vLS00T $ = S & S 00'¥2S'0ZT S 81210U0) 3§ |eI0) qnS
000002T ST - S - S 00'000'ZT $ 000002T $ 11 93Ua4 Yyum ped Jaisdwng
00°009'€ S € . S - S 00°009°€ $ 00002T $ Vie sdwey yay
00688PE S TST = s = S 00'688'VE $ 006ET S AS TST s)jemapis
00'v6€'C $ Vit = S 4 S 00'v6ET $ 007TC S 41 v1T qan) passaidag
00T69°Ly  $ TLTT - S 00°0S6'6T $ 0S6 00'T¥9°29 $ 00'TC $ 41 T22E qind
232JoU0) 3AIS
150D Ayuenp 150D Ayuenp 150D Ayauenp |ejo] way 9o1d Jun nun  Auenp way

<UD WwQzIT

<o OO w

Xi

nx

A



If you have any questions concerning this quotation please contact, Chris Dritt, 610-762-8323.

Authorized by: Christspher R. Dritt

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

2%
Estimate £
3/30/2025 S
855 N. Summit RD. \ i
Bath, PA 18014 : 2
(908)850-0601 X At =
(610)762-8323 - e
hrisDritt@BreatheEZAirDuctCleaning.com R -
www.BreatheEZAirDuctCleaning.com
Submitted To: Quotation valid until: April 9, 2025
Pocono Township Prepared by: Chris Dritt
205 Old Mill Rd
Tannersville, PA
Comments or special instructions:
This quote is for the 4 air circulation units' ductwork in the attic.
" Adiscount has been applied.
Description Units Cost AMOUNT
Air Duct Cleaning 3 5250 $15,750.00
Air Duct Cleaning 1 6750 6,750.00
TOTAL $22,500.00




Tax Code Nos. 12.9.1.68-1

TRAFFIC SIGNAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS TRAFFIC SIGNAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this

day of , 2025, by and between THE POKORNY FAMILY PA,
LLC of 3450 Route 611, Bartonsville, PA 18321 (“Grantor”) and POCONO TOWNSHIP of 112
Township Drive, Tannersville, PA 18372 (“Grantee”).

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of certain real property situate on the southwest corner
of the intersection of State Route 611 and Bartonsville Avenue, Pocono Township, Monroe
County, Pennsylvania, pursuant to a Deed recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of
Monroe County at Record Book 2484 Page 2328 (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, a traffic signal improvement is required at the aforesaid intersection; and

WHEREAS, upon completion of the initial installation of the traffic signal improvements,
and the final inspection and approval thereof by the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation,
Grantee will then be responsible for the long-term maintenance of the traffic signal
improvements; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein
set forth, for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Easement. Grantor hereby declares, grants, conveys and confirms unto Grantee a
permanent, non-exclusive right, privilege and easement on, over, under, across and through the
are depicted on Exhibit A hereto as “Traffic Signal Easement Containing 230 SF,” and more
particularly described as follows:

ALL THAT CERTAIN tract of land located in Pocono Township, County of Monroe,
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as shown on the attached plan titled, TRAFFIC SIGNAL
EASEMENT PLAN, DWG. NO. E-3, being more particularly described as follows to wit:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly PennDOT Legal Right-of-Way line of S.R. 0611,
Sta. 254+69.36 (46.10° LT);

THENCE along the southerly PennDOT Legal Right-of-Way line of S.R. 0611, as shown on
the attached plan titled, TRAFFIC SIGNAL EASEMENT PLAN, DWG. NO. E-3, S 62°46°20”
E,

a distance of 1.00 foot;

THENCE partly along said southerly PennDOT Legal Right-of-Way line of S.R. 0611 and
partly along the westerly PennDOT Legal Right-of-Way line of Rimrock Drive (S.R. 3023),
along a circular non-tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, an arc length of
43.24 feet and a chord bearing S 31°19°20” E, a distance of 42.31 feet;



THENCE through the lands of Pokorney Family, PA, LLC, the following three (3) courses and
distances:

1. S79°19°32” W, a distance of 3.43 feet;
2. N 30°23°02” W, a distance of 40.73 feet;
3. N 27°13’40” E, a distance of 2.37 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 230 sq. ft. or 0.005 acres.

Said Easement herein granted is for the purpose of permitting Grantee to access, repair, replace,
operate and maintain traffic signal devices and other equipment or fixtures necessary or related
thereto, including without limitation traffic signal poles, mast arms, signal heads, signage,
emergency preemption equipment, street lighting, cameras, control boxes, wires, cables, loop
detectors, conduits and timing devices. Grantor , for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby
reserves the right to use the herein conveyed easement area for ingress, egress, and regress,
paving, landscaping, curbs, utilities and any other use permitted by Grantee, provided that
Grantor shall not use the said easement area in any manner which interferes with, obstructs,
impairs or damages the traffic signal facilities or the required sight distances at the intersection
where the traffic signal is located.

2 Obligation to Restore. Grantee shall perform all work, activities, and operations
on or about the Property in a good and workmanlike manner consistent with sound engineering
and construction practices. Upon the completion of any work by Grantee pursuant to this
Agreement, including but not limited to the repair or replacement of some or all of the traffic
signal facilities, Grantee shall restore any part of the easement area and the Property disturbed as
nearly as practicable to the same condition as existed prior to disturbance at its sole cost and
expense.

3. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns
of the parties hereto.

1. Governing L aw. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, intending to be legally bound hereby, have
caused this Agreement to be executed this day of 5 DB

Sealed and Delivered

THE POKORNY FAMILY PA, LLC

By its Member:
Witness
POCONO TOWNSHIP
Attest: By:
Secretary Chairman, Pocono Twp. Board of Commissioners

I hereby certify the Grantee’s precise
mailing address to be:

112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18732




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF
ss
COUNTY OF
On this day of , 2025, before me, a notary public, the
undersigned officer, personally appeared , who identified

himself as Member of The Pokorny Family PA, LLC and executed the foregoing instrument for
the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the company as such Member.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ss
COUNTY OF MONROE

Onthis _ dayof , 2025, before me, a notary public, the
undersigned officer, personally appeared , who acknowledged
himself to be the Chairman of the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners and, being
authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by
signing the name of Pocono Township by himself as Chairman.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public



NAF

79°19°32"W 3.43’

30°23’'02"W 40.73’
RINCKEL LORI AVR N

=
A\ . O
TRUSTEE OF 7H§\ = O TRAFFIC SIGNAL

A=43.24’ 1.00’ 46.10° LT
4+00 A=41"17'44" 255+00

S.R. 06711

[

THE POKORNEY FAMILY, FA, LLC

PARCEL 12.2.7.2% \* S¥
PENN_DOT \/ EASEMENT ,
AE@AL—OF—}Y\\NS ) N27°13'40"E 2.37
[
\7/5/—\;)_) ' ] m
s
0 @ TRAFFIC SIGNAL
EASEMENT
CONTAINING
230 SF.
0.005 ACS. R=60,00"/  ggp°46'20"E STA. 254+69.36

CH=S31"19°20"E

\ 42.3 \
! Y

\
T Me— S
E———
(" 2|5 °| 2|5 5|° N\ (TEe: TRAFFIC SIGNAL h
SCALE IN FEET EASEMENT PLAN y
\_ ),
e N .
ERTLE DEVELOPMENT, LLC Ben‘hmark
798 N. NINTH STREET CMIL ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
STROUDSBURG, MONROE COUNTY, 1727 JONATHAN STREET
\_ PENNSYLVANIA 18360 ) ALLENTOWN, PA 18104
- = 610.776.6700 610.776.1190 FAX
\_ www.bencivil.com Y,
POCONO TOWNSHIP (SCALE: 1" = 25" ) (DWG. FILE: 268013 )
SR. 0611 (PLAN DATE: 03/27/25) (DWG. NO.: j
\_ MONROE COUNTY, PA J(SHT. NO.: 10F1 ) E-

Mar 27, 2025 — 1:52pm

copyright 2025



Pennsylvania
Department of
Environmental Protection

7
=

April 4, 2025

Patrick Briegel

Public Works Director
Pocono Township

112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

Dear Patrick Briegel,

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has completed its review of Pocono
Township’s request to hold an electronics collection event at 112 Township Drive, Tannersville,

PA 18372 from April 25, 2025 to April 26, 2025 and from September 26, 2025 to September 27,
2025.

Approval is hereby granted to conduct these collections contingent upon operating in accordance
with your registration and the following conditions:

1. This collection must adhere to the requirements included in the federal hazardous waste
regulations at 40 CFR 261.4(a)(22), 40 CFR 261.39-261.41 and the Pennsylvania
hazardous waste regulations at 25 Pa. Code 261a.39.

2. Ifresidents are charged a fee to recycle their covered devices during these events, these
covered devices cannot be counted toward a manufacturer’s recycling obligation under
the Pennsylvania Covered Device Recycling Act (CDRA).

3. Traffic control will direct participants off the highway.

4. This approval is contingent upon adherence to all state and local restrictions regarding
event attendance, health and safety.

If there are any significant changes to your collection program, please contact Marc Moran by
telephone at 717.772.5711 or by e-mail at marcmoran@pa.gov.

BUREAU OF WASTE MANAGEMENT
Rachel Carson State Office Building | P.O. Box 8472 | Harrisburg, PA 17105-8472 | 717.787.7382 | www.dep.pa.gov



Patrick Briegel -2-

Sincerely,
Marc Moran

Marc Moran
Solid Waste Program Specialist
Division of Waste Minimization & Planning

cc: Mike Stettler, Monroe County MWMA
Salena Borsuk, Monroe County MWMA
Jackie Bagu, Monroe County Recycling Coordinator
Berit Case, DEP Northeast Regional Office
Jordan Hoover, DEP Central Office

April 4,2025



Pocono Township Monthly Zoning Report

TO: Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
FROM: Lindsay Scerbo, Zoning Administrator
CC: Shawn McGlynn, Zoning Officer

DATE: March 19, 2025

3 3k 3k 3k ok 3k sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok 3k sk 3k 3k sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k sk 3k 3k 3 3k 3k ok K 3 ok % 3k ok koK oK ok ok sk 3k ok ok sk ok 3 3k ok 3 3k ok 3 3k oK 3% ok K ok ok ok %

Following is a report for the Zoning and Building Code Office’s activity from March 13t to March
20t

Permits Issued: 28

Zoning Permits: 6 New Construction: 1 Building Permits: 8
Commercial -1 Commercial -0 Commercial — 1
Residential — 5 Residential — 1 Residential — 7
Certificate of Occupancy — 10 Driveway — 1 TDU-0

Well -1 Grading -1

Enforcement Actions:

o March 17, 2025 - 2768 Pocono Circle — Letter — A letter was sent to the owner of the property for
initiating construction activity within the Township Right of Way in violation of the Township
Streets and Sidewalks Ordinance. A response has yet to be received by the property owner.

o March 17, 2025 - 148 Tanbark Lane — Enforcement Notice — A property maintenance enforcement
notice was issued to the property owner for the failure to maintain the property and permitting the
accumulation of municipal waste and bulk items.

o March 17, 2025 - 3292 Route 611 — Email — An email was sent to the owner of the subject property
for displaying feather flags on the subject property. The flags have since been removed and the
violation has been closed.

o March 18, 2025 - 5527 Birchwood Drive — Letter — A letter was sent to the owner of the subject
property for permitting the accumulation of municipal waste on the property.

o March 20, 2025 - 353 Cherry Lane Road — Enforcement Notice — A zoning enforcement notice was
issued for establishing a transient dwelling use on the subject property.

Previously Discussed Properties:
o 117 Tannenbaum Way — A Grading Notice of Violation was issued for placing fill on the subject

property without first obtaining a grading permit. The property owner has been in contact with our
office as well as the Monroe County Conservation District and is working toward compliance.



(0]

129 Tannenbaum Way — A Grading Notice of Violation was issued for placing fill on the subject
property without first obtaining a grading permit. The property owner has been in contact with our
office as well as the Monroe County Conservation District and is working toward compliance.

135 Tannenbaum Way — A Grading Notice of Violation was issued for placing fill on the subject
property without first obtaining a grading permit. The property owner has been in contact with our
office as well as the Monroe County Conservation District and is working toward compliance.

1305 Cerise Way — Zoning and UCC Notices of Violation were issued for constructing a single-family
dwelling on the property without first obtaining permit approvals. The Zoning Office will be filing a
civil complaint against the property owner.

Closed Violations:

o

128 Kevins Lane — A letter was sent to the owners of the property, as it was brought to our
attention that they may potentially be operating a home occupation from the property. The
property owners have since contacted our office regarding this matter and have affirmed that no
home occupation is being run and that the materials on the property are for personal use.

District Magistrate Hearings:

o

Merry Hill Road — Parcel 12.9C.1.34 — A civil complaint was filed for initiating construction
activity on the subject property without first obtaining the necessary permits. This hearing has
been scheduled for April 3, 2025, at 1:00 PM.

136 Beaver Trail — A civil complaint was filed for initiating construction activity on the subject
property without first obtaining the necessary permits. A default date for this matter has been
scheduled for Monday, March 24, 2025, at 10:00 AM.

1313 Scotrun Drive — A civil complaint was filed for initiating construction activity on the
subject property without first obtaining the necessary permits. A date for this matter has yet
to be determined.

2351 Route 715 — A civil complaint was filed for initiating construction activity and expanding
the use of the subject property without first obtaining the necessary permits and land
development approvals. A date for this matter has yet to be determined.

175 Laurel Lake Road — Ten (10) non-traffic citations were filed against the owners of the
subject property for various property maintenance violations. A date for these matters has yet
to be determined.

Upcoming Public Hearings:

o None currently scheduled.



EFP20250402-P24606 KISTLER O'BRIEN

FIRE PROTECTION

powered by G encore
610-266-7100 + 800-322-9060 - kobfire.com

— Location .

Pocono Township Building

205 Old Mill Rd
Tannersville, PA 18372

Jerrod D. Belvin, Township Manager
570-629-1922
jbelvin@poconopa.gov

l

PROJECT TITLE
Fire-Safety Inspections

SCOPE OF WORK

Bill To

2025-04-02

Pocono Township

112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

Jerrod D. Belvin, Township Manager
570-629-1922
jbelvin@poconopa.gov

Thank you for the opportunity to share a proposal for your fire-protection needs. We pride ourselves in our ability to
offer you the best service in our industry at a competitive price. Your requested services are outlined below including
quantities, frequency of services, and the service descriptions. If you have any further questions, please contact me.

SERVICES & LOCATIONS

Pocono Township Building
205 Old Mill Rd, Tannersville, PA 18372

(Annual) (6) Extinguisher Inspection, Recurring w/ Charts

(Annual) (48) E-Light Inspection, Recurring w/ Charts

(Single) Service, (1) Hour for Assessing How Many / What Kind of Additional Extinguishers Are Needed,

One-Time

(Annual) Fire Alarm, Simplex 4010 Inspection, Recurring w/ AHJ Fee, (1) Panel, (2) Annunciator, (1) Dialer, (2)
Nac, (2) Remote transponder, (11) Pull, (112) Smoke, (20) Heat restorable, (7) Input, (44) Audio visual

CLARIFICATIONS

Included
Included

Included

Included

Device counts were taken from a prior inspection report. If additional devices are discovered during the inspection,
additional charges may apply. This may also apply if expired extinguishers in need of their 6-year maintenance are

discovered.

If a lift is required to access any devices or perform any work, additional charges may apply.

If any deficiencies are discovered or recommendations need to be made, you will be contacted shortly after the

inspection.

Page 1 of 4




EFP20250402-P24606 KISTLER O'BRIEN 2025-04-02

FIRE PROTECTION
powered by G encore
OUR WORK MAKES YOUR WORK SAFER

TOTAL PROPOSAL AMOUNT: $ 3,840.02 (sales Tax Included)

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL. The above price(s), scope of work, conditions, clarifications and terms are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted. If a Contract or Purchase Order is issued as your approval, it is understood that the price(s), scope of
work, conditions, clarifications and terms are approved as noted herein. The signature block below is provided for your

convenience, and it is understood that the signatory has authorization to bind Customer to this Contract. By signing below,
you agree to the Terms & Conditions listed at the end of this document.

Print Name Signature Date

Title Purchase Order Number
Please contact Benjamin Walters
at bwalters@kobfire.com or 484-239-3088
with any questions.

Page 2 of 4




EFP20250402-P24606 KISTLER O'BRIEN 2025-04-02

FIRE PROTECTION
powered by G encore

OUR WORK MAKES YOUR WORK SAFER

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCLUDED HEREIN

GENERAL

Upon acceptance of the foregoing proposal and quote (the "PROPOSAL"), by you, the customer ("CUSTOMER?"), by executing and returning the PROPOSAL to Encore Fire
Protection ("ENCORE"), CUSTOMER shall have agreed to the following TERMS AND CONDITIONS in connection with ENCORE'S provision of products and services (this
"AGREEMENT"), whether an inspection, a repair or an installation of fire safety systems (the "FIRE SYSTEM(S)"). If the PROPOSAL is not accepted within thirty (30) days of its
date, it may be withdrawn by ENCORE.

SCOPE OF WORK

Unless otherwise specified, the scope of work is limited to accessible devices and system components and to where access can be obtained without restriction at the scheduled
time of visit, and does not exceed heights reachable with a 6' ladder.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CUSTOMER

Itis ultimately the responsibility of the CUSTOMER (such term herein includes all employees, agents and representatives of CUSTOMER) to:

- Properly maintain all but not limited to fire sprinkler, fire alarm, fire suppression systems and/or fire extinguishers, by means of periodic inspections, testing and maintenance,
which shall show the FIRE SYSTEM(S) to be in good operating condition and/or reveal any defects or impairments.

- Promptly correct or repair deficiencies noted, damaged parts, or impairments found while performing the inspection and testing of FIRE SYSTEM(S). Corrections and repairs
shall be performed by qualified personnel.

- Know the location of all FIRE SYSTEM components including but not limited to: low point drains, portable extinguishers, valves including those above ceiling, and auxiliary
drains in attics and/or crawl spaces.

- Notify all parties that may be affected by alarms initiated during inspection, repair, service, maintenance or installation including but not limited to employees, building
occupants, the fire alarm monitoring service, and authorities having jurisdiction.

- Manage the disposal of any water or debis released during tests.

- Ensure the safety and security of the site or location where the FIRE SYSTEM(S) are located and at which ENCORE will provide services.

- Maintain the FIRE SYSTEM(S), including but not limited to checking and draining low point drains and drum drips, maintaining adequate low point drains and drum drips,
maintaining adequate heat, maintaining proper levels of lubricant, ensuring FIRE SYSTEM(S) are on-line and operating properly, and completing regular maintenance and
alterations, repairs or replacement of faulty system components as necessary.

- Have as-built system drawings available on site to assist the technician in identifying FIRE SYSTEM components so that they can be properly located. CUSTOMER is
responsible for identifying all FIRE SYSTEM(S) and component locations.

- Unless otherwise specified, pay all applicable local, state and federal taxes, license and permit fees, assessments, and other charges in connection with the FIRE
SYSTEM(S).

- Unless otherwise specified, pay any additional costs associated with the inspection, repair, service, maintenance or installation by ENCORE, including costs associated with
fire department or other authorities having jurisdiction, rental of lift trucks or other equipment required to gain access to inaccessible FIRE SYSTEM components, and/or
maintenance of dedicated phone lines.

- CUSTOMER shall be solely responsible for keeping the FIRE SYSTEM(S) in good operating condition at all times. Final responsibility for the condition and operation of the
FIRE SYSTEM(S) is with the CUSTOMER. This includes compliance with all laws, codes and regulations pertaining to the FIRE SYSTEM(S) and/or scope of work provided
by ENCORE.

WARRANTY AND LIABILITY

UNLESS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ENCORE MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. No representations
made by an employee, agent or representative of ENCORE shall constitute a warranty by ENCORE or give rise to any liability or obligation.

CUSTOMER AGREES THAT ENCORE IS NOT AN INSURER. ENCORE's liability to the CUSTOMER or any of its affiliates, representatives or assigns for personal injury, and/or
property damage arising from the performance of any service, including repair, install or inspection, performed by ENCORE shall be limited, to the extent permitted by applicable
law, to the amounts charged CUSTOMER for such service, which will be CUSTOMER's sole and exclusive remedy. In the event this AGREEMENT relates to services provided
at multiple CUSTOMER locations, ENCORE'S liability shall be limited to the amount of charges allocable to the location where the injury or damage occurred.

In no event shall ENCORE be liable, and the CUSTOMER assumes all liability, for all special, indirect, incidental, consequential, liquidated, or penal damages or any economic
loss of any character including but not limited to loss of use of property, lost profits or lost production, whether claimed by the CUSTOMER or by any third party, irrespective of
whether claims or actions for such damages are based upon contract, warranty, negligence, tort, strict liability or otherwise.

CUSTOMER shall hold ENCORE harmless from any and all claims by CUSTOMER and from any and all third-party claims for personal injury, and/or property damage arising
from the CUSTOMER's failure to maintain FIRE SYSTEM(S) and to keep such in operative condition, whether such claims are based upon contract, warranty, tort, strict liability,
or otherwise. Itis the sole responsibility of the CUSTOMER to notify their property insurance carrier of any suspension and/or shutdown in service of any FIRE SYSTEM(S). The
CUSTOMER agrees to hold ENCORE harmless from any and all losses excluded by any Protective Safeguards Endorsement in ENCORE's insurance policy.

STATE CODES/INDUSTRY STANDARDS

CUSTOMER is ultimately responsible for the operation and maintenance of all FIRE SYSTEM(S) in compliance with the applicable federal, state and/or local standards and
codes. ENCORE has made the CUSTOMER aware of the existence of such requirements as set forth by the National Fire Protection Association ("NFPA""), and/or state codes,
and/or local regulations where applicable. CUSTOMER acknowledges that it has selected and authorized only the services and service level set forth in the Agreement,
regardless of whether such services or service level meets or does not meet applicable requirements.

CUSTOMER shall advise ENCORE prior to the time of the scheduled appointment of the presence or possible presence of any hazardous materials at the site or location at
which ENCORE is to provide any service.

PERFORMANCE OF WORK AND ACCESS

Unless otherwise specified, work performed by ENCORE will be completed Monday through Friday between 7:00am - 4:00pm, excluding holidays. Any work that is required to be
done outside the hours noted above may result in additional cost to the CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER shall provide ENCORE with full and free access to the FIRE SYSTEM(S) to
perform necessary work. If the nature of the work requires, CUSTOMER shall provide ENCORE with access to all spaces containing FIRE SYSTEM(S) equipment.

In the event that the FIRE SYSTEM(S) or any components thereof are located in locked areas or areas where access is limited, the CUSTOMER shall provide an escort capable
of accessing the aforementioned areas at will and without disruption to the performance of the work. The escort shall remain in the presence of the ENCORE personnel for the
entire duration required as determined by the ENCORE technician.

In the event that the work to be performed by ENCORE requires additional trades, it shall be the sole responsibility of the CUSTOMER to coordinate the necessary trades and
ensure they are able to provide contiguous support, at ENCORE'S direction and discretion, for the duration of the wark, without disruption. The cost and performance by other
trades shall be the sole responsibility of the CUSTOMER.

In the event that ENCORE is unable to perform its work, in part or in full, in the manner planned due to limited access to the FIRE SYSTEMS or their components or as a result of
disruption or delay caused by another trade, or any other situation or circumstance that is not directly related to actions or activities of ENCORE employees, added costs for the
additional time required to complete the work shall be assessed and be the sole responsibility of the CUSTOMER.

IF ENCORE IS NOT PROVIDED FULL AND FREE ACCESS TO THE FIRE SYSTEM(S) AFTER CONFIRMATION OF APPOINTMENT, VERIFIED WITH CUSTOMER

Page 3 of 4




EFP20250402-P24606 KISTLER O'BRIEN 2025-04-02

FIRE PROTECTION
powered by G encore
OUR WORK MAKES YOUR WORK SAFER

THROUGH TELEPHONE OR E-MAIL, AN ADDITIONAL FEE OF NOT LESS THAN 1 HOUR WILL BE CHARGED TO COMPENSATE FOR DELAYS IN ENCORE'S ABILITY
TO START AND/OR COMPLETE THE INSPECTION, REPAIR, SERVICE, MAINTENANCE OR INSTALLATION WORK TO BE PERFORMED. THE LABOR RATE WILL BE
CHARGED AT ENCORE'S THEN CURRENT SERVICE RATE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, ALTERATIONS, AND REPLACEMENTS

The scope of work and related pricing provided for in the Agreement, unless specifically noted otherwise, does not include any maintenance, repairs, alterations, and
replacement or recalibration of parts or any field adjustments, software updates, etc.Should any repairs, alterations, replacement of parts or field adjustments be requested by
CUSTOMER, there will be an additional charge for such services and parts. ENCORE shall furnish the CUSTOMER with a written cost estimate before any additional work is
performed. ENCORE shall not be responsible or liable to CUSTOMER or any third party in any manner in the event that CUSTOMER declines ENCORE's recommendations for
alterations, repairs, field adjustments or replacement of faulty system components.

TESTING OF FIRE SYSTEM(S)

If the services to be provided by ENCORE include installation of FIRE SYSTEM(S) equipment, once installation of the equipment is completed and a record of completion and/or
test report has been provided, it is deemed to be in the exclusive possession and control of CUSTOMER, and except for ENCORE's scheduled inspections, it shall be
CUSTOMER's responsibility to test the operation of the equipment and to notify ENCORE of any needed equipment repair.

PAYMENT

ENCORE will invoice CUSTOMER separately for the contracted services and any related equipment and CUSTOMER shall pay all invoiced amounts within the time provided in

the PROPOSAL or as otherwise directed in the invoice issued for such services and/for equipment (the "INVOICE™). Any CUSTOMER dispute regarding an INVOICE must be
raised with ENCORE by CUSTOMER within 15 days of the date of the disputed INVOICE.

ENCORE shall be entitled to impose interest on late payments received by ENCORE, which interest shall accrue daily and compound monthly at 1.5%, but in no event will
exceed the highest lawful rate of interest calculated from the date such amount was due until the date payment is received by ENCORE. CUSTOMER shall be responsible for
any and all of ENCORE's costs of collection, including but not limited to attorneys' fees.

Timely payment is a condition precedent to ENCORE's obligation to perform or continue to perform the work under this Agreement, and ENCORE may, at its option, suspend any
portion or all of the work until all past-due amounts are paid by CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER agrees that ENCORE shall not be liable for any losses, liabilities or damages of any
nature which CUSTOMER may suffer or incur as a result of ENCORE's suspension of work.

If the price for any materials or products to be used in an installation or repair increases materially between the date CUSTOMER signs this AGREEMENT and ENCORE's
purchase of such materials or products, ENCORE reserves the right to make any increases or adjustments to the prices set forth in the PROPOSAL.

Subcontractor/service provider cannot be held responsible, in any way, for material adverse effects not within their control, Material adverse effects, with respect to this
agreement, include but are not limited to national or international health, political or social issues such as national disasters, imposition of sanctions, tariffs, epidemics,
pandemics, outbreaks, etc. that could potentially impact the financial outcome of this agreement through delays, increased costs, price gouging, etc. Subcontractor/service
provider reserves the right to increase prices set forth in this contract on a dollar-for-dollar basis for any cost escalation associated with any such material adverse effect.
PRICING ADJUSTMENTS DUE TO EXTERNAL FACTORS

We strive to maintain stable pricing; however, our prices are subject to change due to unforeseen external factors beyond our control. These may include, but are not limited to,
government-imposed tariffs, changes in import/export duties, significant supply chain disruptions, or other material adverse events. In the event such circumstances lead to
increased costs, we reserve the right to adjust pricing accordingly.

DELAYS

ENCORE shall not be liable for any damage or loss sustained by CUSTOMER as a result of ENCORE's failure to perform any obligation under this AGREEMENT, including
delay in performing inspections or installation of equipment, equipment failure or for interruption of service, due to electric failure, labor disputes, walk-outs, war, pandemics, acts
of God, or other causes.

REPORTS

The inspection and/or test of CUSTOMER'S FIRE SYSTEM(S) shall be completed on ENCORE's then current Report form which shall be given to the CUSTOMER, with a copy,
if required, to the authority having jurisdiction. The Report and recommendations by ENCORE are only advisory in nature and are intended to assist CUSTOMER in reducing the
possibility of loss to property by indicating obvious defects or impairments noted to the FIRE SYSTEM(S) which require prompt consideration. They are not intended to imply that
all other defects or hazards have been identified or that no others exist, or that all aspects of the FIRE SYSTEM(S) and equipment are in operating condition at the time of
inspection. Final responsibility for the condition and operation of the FIRE SYSTEM(S) lies with the CUSTOMER.

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT

In the event additional equipment is installed after the date of completion of the Agreement, the annual inspection charge shall be adjusted in accordance with ENCORE's
prevailing rates as of the first inspection of such additional equipment.

WATER SUPPLY

ENCORE shall not be liable or responsible for the adequacy or condition of the water supply post inspection.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

This AGREEMENT will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the state or commonwealth in which ENCORE is providing the work under this
AGREEMENT (the "STATE"). The parties also agree to submit all disputes arising under this AGREEMENT to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the STATE.
ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement and any terms hereof are not assignable by CUSTOMER without the written consent of ENCORE. ENCORE may assign this Agreement or any terms hereof
without CUSTOMER consent.

WORK NOT INCLUDED

Certain additional services may be required by Authorities Having Jurisdiction ("AHJ"™).AHJ or internal organizational requirements may be more restrictive than NFPA and/or
state and local requirements. It is the CUSTOMER's responsibility to make themselves aware of applicable codes and references in order to ensure that contracted services are in
compliance with these additional requirements.

Additionally, the testing and inspection provided under this AGREEMENT does not include:

1. Testing or inspection of any equipment on a city right of way

2. Testing or inspection of any device(s) in a concealed space or any area not accessible to ENCORE during any inspection

3. Number of devices in excess of device counts provided by CUSTOMER. Devices not reflected in documentation provided are subject to incremental billing based on time
needed to access and test them

4. Testing or inspection of any device(s) located in areas that meet confined space requirements as defined by OSHA

5. Fire Alarm disconnect/reconnect fees

6. Fire watch or watch fees from the fire department if required

Page 4 of 4




Johnson Controls planned service proposal
Prepared for POCONO TOWNSHIP

Customer
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Local Johnson Controls Office
5 PETHICK DRIVE, SUITE 5
WILKES-BARRE, PA 18702

Agreement Start Date:
05/01/2025

Proposal Date
04/02/2025

Estimate No:
1-1Q6VAC9H

Partnering with you to deliver value-driven solutions

Every day, we transform the environments where people live, work, learn and play. From optimizing
building performance to improving safety and enhancing comfort, we are here to power your mission.

A Planned Service Agreement with Johnson Controls provides you with a customized service
strategy designed around the needs of your facility. Our approach features a combination of
scheduled, predictive and preventative maintenance services that focus on your goals.

As your building technology services partner, Johnson Controls delivers an unmatched service
experience delivered by factory-trained, highly skilled technicians who optimize operations of the
buildings we work with, creating productive and safe environments for the people within.

By integrating our service expertise with innovative processes and technologies, our value-driven
planned service solutions deliver sustainable results, minimize equipment downtime and maximize
occupant comfort.

With more than a century of healthy buildings expertise, Johnson Controls leverages
technologies to successfully deliver smart solutions to facilities worldwide.

o 7] Johnson Controls was recognized by Frost &
FROST & SULLIVAN
Sullivan as the 2020 North American Company

] of the Year for innovation in the Smart
2020 North American Company of the Year for connected Chillers market

Award | Innovation in Smart Connected Chillers




Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Executive summary

Planned service proposal for POCONO TOWNSHIP
Dear Customer,

We value and appreciate your interest in Johnson Controls as a service provider for your
building systems and are pleased to provide a value-driven maintenance solution for your

facility. The enclosed proposal outlines the Planned Service Agreement we have developed on
your facility.

Details are included in the Planned Service Agreement summary (Schedule A), but highlights
are as follows:

e In this proposal we are offering a service agreement for 3 Years
starting 05/01/2025 and ending 04/30/2028.

e The agreement price for first year is $7,018.00; see Schedule A, Supplemental Price and
Payment Terms, for pricing in subsequent years.

e The equipment options and number of visits being provided for each piece of equipment are
described in Schedule A, Equipment list.

As a manufacturer of both mechanical and controls systems, Johnson Controls has the
expertise and resources to provide proper maintenance and repair services for your facility.

Again, thank you for your interest in Johnson Controls and we look forward to becoming your
building technology services partner.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Sincerely,
Matthew Maloney

HVAC Account Rep
(866) 468-1482

The power behind your mission

//})I
(]
©® 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. Johnson (

Customer Confidential Controls
Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc. Page 2 of 23



: Planned Service Proposal
“POCONO TOWNSHIP

Benefits of planned service

A Planned Service Agreement with Johnson Controls
will allow you to optimize your building’s facility
performance, providing dependability, sustainability
and energy efficiency. You'll get a value-driven
solution that fits your specific goals, delivered with
the attention of a local service company backed by
the resources of a global organization.

With this Planned Service Agreement, Johnson 3 z benefits
Controls can help you achieve the following five 25 of a PSA
objectives: e % :

1. ldentify energy savings Opportunities
Since HVAC equipment accounts for a major
portion of a building's energy usage, keeping
your system performing at optimum levels
may lead to a significant reduction in energy
costs.

2. Reduce future repair costs

Routine maintenance may maximize the life of your equipment and may reduce

equipment breakdowns.

3. Extend asset life

Through proactive, factory-recommended maintenance, the life of your HVAC assets

may be extended, maximizing the return on your investment.

4. Ensure productive environments

Whether creating a comfortable place where employees can be productive or controlling
a space to meet specialized needs, maintenance can help you achieve an optimal

environment for the work that is being accomplished

5. Promote environmental health and safety

When proper indoor conditions and plant requirements are maintained, business

outcomes may be improved by minimizing sick leave, reducing accidents, minimizing

greenhouse gas emissions and managing refrigerant requirements.

All of the services we perform on your equipment are aligned with “The 5 Values of Planned

Maintenance” and our technicians understand how the work they perform can help you

accomplish your business objectives.

© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc.
Customer Confidential

Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc.

Johnson //))I(‘

Controls
Page 3 of 23



Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Our partnership

Personalized account management

A Planned Service Agreement also provides you with the support of an entire team that knows
your site and can closely work with you on budget planning and asset management. Your local
Johnson Controls account management team can help guide planned replacement, energy
retrofits and other building improvement projects. You'll have peace of mind that an entire team
of skilled professionals will be looking out for what is best for your facility and budget.

A culture of safety

Johnson Controls technicians take safety seriously and personally, and integrate it into
everything they do. All of our technicians participate in regular and thorough safety training.
Because of their personal commitment, we are a leader in the HVAC service industry for

workplace safety performance. This means that you do not have to worry about us when we are
on your site.

Commitment to customer satisfaction

Throughout the term of your Planned Service Agreement, we will periodically survey you and

use your feedback to continue to make improvements to our service processes and products.
Our goal is to deliver the most consistent and complete service experience possible. To meet
this goal, we've developed and implemented standards and procedures to ensure you receive
the ultimate service experience — every time.

Energy & sustainability

A more sustainable world one building at a time — Johnson Controls is a company that started
more than 125 years ago with a product that reduced energy use in buildings. We've been
saving energy for customers ever since. Today, Johnson Controls is a global leader in creating

smart environments where people live, work and play, helping to create a more comfortable,
safe and sustainable world.

The value of integrity

Johnson Controls has a long, proud history of integrity. We do what we say we will do and stand
behind our commitments. Our good reputation builds trust and loyalty. In recognition for our
commitment to ethics across our global operations, we are honored to be named one of the
World's Most Ethical Companies by Ethisphere Institute, a leading think tank dedicated to
business ethics and corporate social responsibility. In addition, Corporate Responsibility
Magazine recognizes Johnson Controls as one of the top companies in its annual “100 Best
Corporate Citizens” list.

///)I'
§
© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. Johnson (

Customer Confidential Controls
Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Contrals, Inc. Page 4 of 23



Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Service delivery

As part of the delivery of this Planned Service Agreement, Johnson Controls will dedicate a
local customer service agent responsible for having a clear understanding of the agreement
scope, and your facility procedures and protocols.

A high-level overview around our service delivery process is outlined below including
scheduling, emergency service, on-site paperwork, communication and performing repairs
outside of the agreement scope.

Scheduling

Preventative maintenance service will be scheduled using our automated service management
system. In advance of the scheduled service visit, our technician is sent a notice of service to a
smartphone. Once the technician acknowledges the request, your customer service agent will

call or e-mail your on-site contact to let you know the start date and type of service scheduled.

The technician checks in, wears personal protective equipment, performs the task(s) as
assigned, checks out with you and asks for a screen capture signature on the smartphone
device. A work order is then e-mailed, faxed or printed for your records.

Emergency Services

Emergency service can be provided 7 days a week, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. During

normal business hours, emergency service will be coordinated by the customer service agent.
After hours, weekends and holidays, the emergency service number transfers to the Johnson
Controls after-hours call center and on-call technicians are dispatched as needed.

Johnson Controls is committed to dispatching a technician within hours of receiving your call
through the service line. A work order is e-mailed, faxed or printed for your records. Depending
on the terms of your agreement, you may incur charges for after hour services.

Communication
A detailed communication plan will be provided to you so you know how often we will provide

information to you regarding your Planned Service Agreement. The communication plan will
also provide you with your main contacts at Johnson Controls.

Approval process for non-covered items

Johnson Controls will adhere to your procurement process. No work will be performed outside
of the agreement scope without prior approval. Johnson Controls will work with you closely to
ensure your procurement process is followed before any non-covered item work is started.

2
U
® 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. JOhnSOﬂ (

Customer Confidential Controls

Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc. Page 5 of 23



> Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Summary of services and options

Comprehensive and operational inspections
During comprehensive and operational inspections, Johnson Controls will perform routine

checks of the equipment for common issues caused by normal wear and tear on the equipment.
Additional tests can be run to confirm the equipment’s performance.

Routine maintenance, such as lubrication, cleaning and tightening connections, can be
performed depending on the type of equipment being serviced. Routine maintenance is one of
the keys to the five values of maintenance — it can help identify energy saving opportunities,

reduce future repair costs, extend asset life, ensure productive environments, and promote
health and safety.

Customer Portal / Service Information Access

The Johnson Controls customer portal is the online gateway to easily access various elements of
your service information. This real-time, self-service mechanism is just one more way for you to stay
in touch with our service within your facilities. Using the internet, you can view service call history by
location, monitor agreements, as well as view asset and invoice information.

yj)x;
U
© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. JOhnSOH (

Customer Confidential Controls

Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc. Page 6 of 23



ntrols Planned Service Proposal
"POCONO TOWNSHIP

Summary

Thank you for considering Johnson Controls as your building technology services partner. The
following agreement document includes all the details surrounding your Planned Service
Agreement.

With planned service from Johnson Controls, you'll get a value-driven solution that can help
optimize your building controls and equipment performance, providing dependability,
sustainability and energy efficiency. You'll get a solution that fits your specific goals, delivered
with the attention of a local service company backed by the resources of a global organization.

The power behind your mission l

ﬂj)[
{
© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. JOhnSOﬂ (

Customer Confidential Controls

Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc. Page 7 of 23



Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Planned Service Agreement

Customer Name : POCONO TOWNSHIP

Address: 112 TOWNSHIP DR TANNERSVILLE,PA 18372
Proposal Date: 04/02/2025

Estimate #: 1-1Q6VAC9H

Scope of Service

Johnson Controls, Inc. (“JCI”) and the Customer (collectively the “Parties”) agree Preventative
Maintenance Services, as defined in Schedule A (“Services"), will be provided by JCI at the Customer’s
facility. This Planned Service Agreement, the Equipment List, Supplemental Price and Payment Terms,
Terms and Conditions, and Schedules attached hereto and incorporated by this reference as if set forth
fully herein (collectively the “Agreement"), cover the rights and obligations of both the Customer and JCI.

Extended Service Options for Premium Coverage

If Premium Coverage is selected, on-site repair services to the equipment will be provided as specified in
this Agreement for the equipment listed in the attached Equipment List.

Equipment List

Only the equipment listed in the Equipment List will be covered as part of this Agreement. Any changes to
the Equipment List must be agreed upon in writing by both Parties.

Term / Automatic Renewal

This Agreement takes effect on 05/01/2025 and will continue until 04/30/2028 (“Original Term”). The
Agreement will automatically renew and extend for successive terms equal to the Original Term unless
the Customer or JCI gives the other written notice it does not want to renew prior to the end of the
then-current term (each a “Renewal Term”). The notice must be delivered at least (90) days prior to the
end of the Original Term or of any Renewal Term. The Original Term and any Renewal Term may be
referred to herein as the “Term”. Renewal price adjustments are discussed in the Terms and Conditions.

Refrigerant Charges

Refrigerant is not included under this Agreement and will be billed separately to the Customer by JCI.

//j) “'
‘ v
© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. Johnson (

Customer Confidential Controls
Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, Inc. Page 8 of 23



Planned Service Proposal
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Price and Payment Terms

The total Contract Price for JCI's Services during the first year of the Original Term is $7,018.00. This
amount will be paid to JCI in advance in Annual installments. Pricing for each subsequent year of a
multiyear Original Term is set forth in the Supplemental Price and Payment Terms. Unless otherwise
agreed to by the parties, All payments will be due upon receipt. Renewal price adjustments are set forth

in the Terms and Conditions. Any additional taxes, duties, tariffs or similar items imposed prior to
shipment will be charged.

Invoices will be sent to the following location: POCONO TOWNSHIP
112 TOWNSHIP DRIVE
TANNERSVILLE,PA 18372

To ensure that JCI is compliant with your company's billing requirements, please provide the following
information:

PO is required to facilitate billing:

[] No: This signed contract satisfies requirement

YES: Please reference this PO
[] number :

AR Invoices are accepted via e-mail:

[] YES: E-mail address to be used :
[] No: Please submit invoices via mail
[] No: Please submit via :

This proposal is valid for thirty days from the proposal date.
JOHNSON CONTROLS Inc.

JCI Manager: Customer Manager:

4Gl Manager Signatuve: Customer Manager Signature:

Title: Date: Title: Date:

JCI Branch: JOHNSON CONTROLS WILKES-BARRE PA CB - 0N36
Address:5 PETHICK DRIVE, SUITE 5

WILKES-BARRE,PA 18702
Branch Phone:(866) 468-1482
Branch Email:

26
{
© 2025 Johnson Controls, Inc. Johnson (

Customer Confidential Controls
Do not copy (physically, electronically, or in any other media) without the express written permission of Johnson Controls, I<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>